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Highlights 01

1ee4 3L JO MOIAGYH

Development programme on schedule

» 25 Churchill Place - topped out, cladding and bulding services installation N progress
* Crossral staticn
- station box delivered to Crossrall 5 months ahead of schedule
— construction commenced on 115,000 sq ft of retal and leisure space above the stafion

* Retall expansion — 44 000 sq ft extension to Jubilee Place mall on track to open in November 2013 64 0% let or in solicitors’
hands at 31 December 2012

» Jont ventures
— 20 Fenchurch Street — topped cut in 2012 352,000 sq ft or 53 0% prelet
- Shall Centre ~ planning application submitted In December 2012

* Land assembly — 100 0% ownership of Wood Wharf secured and a new master plan being developed for approximately 4 8m sa ft,
divided equally between office and residental

Continued leasing activity and secure income stream

* Weighted average lease term 1s 15 5 years or 14 2 years assuning exercise of all break options

* lease extension signed with Bank of New York Mellon on ovar 152,000 sq ft in One Canada Square at £42 50 psf (10 4% ahead
of bult ERV at 31 December 2011}

* Further letings of approximately 25,000 sq ft, Including leases with rents in the range £40 00-£43 00 psf

Portfolio valuation shows continued growth

* Retal portfolio performing well ~ valuation up 8 8% over year and 4 8% in second half

» Office portfolio valuahon ncreased by 2 5% over year and 2 4% n second half

* Benchmark init:al yield reduced to 5 0%

* Market value of Investment portfolc up by 3 4% over year

* Including land, portfolio vatuation up 4 1% over year, adjusting for capital expenditure and Wood Wharf acquisition

Secure financial position provides foundation for Group's strategy

* Terms of Preference Shares amended in August 2012 {Note (1f) Repayment date extended and coupon reduced from fixed rate
of 10 C% p a 1o fixed rate of 8 76% p a after hedging

* £190 Om construction loan facility secured against 25 Churchill Piace with first drawdown in January 2013

* Schediled loan amortisation of £74 7m paid in year (Note (i)

* Average loan matunty of 13 0 years in ine with weighted average lease term

Financial summary
* Adjusted net assets £1,556 5m at 31 Decermnber 2012, an increase of £104 4m or 7 2% from £1,452 1m at 31 December 2011,
and £31 2m or 2 0% since 30 June 2012 (Note (V)

s Adjusted NAV per share 210p compared with 190p at 31 December 2011, an increase of 10 5%, and 198p at 30 June 2012.
an increase of 5 5% {Note (V)

* Repurchase of 24 5m Songbird Shares at an average price of £1 22 per share in 2012 at an aggregate cost, including fees,
of £30 3m (Note (1), funded from £79 9m of dividends recewed from Canary Wharf Group

¢ The Board has approved further repurchases 1o an aggregate cost of up to £10 Om in 2013 (Note (i)}
* Share repurchases boosted adiusted NAY by 3p per share (Note ()
¢ Underlying profit before tax £23 3m (2011 - £4 6m) (Note (v))

Note

) For further nformaticn on the above refer 1o the Business Review unless ctherwise stated
i) Refer to Note 24

) Refer to Note 21

{iv} Refer to Note 4

{v) Refer fo the Congolidated ncome Statemeant




Results in brief

2012 2011

Note £m £
Rental income (excluding tenant ncentves adjustments) {0 2638 2513
Undlertying operating proft () 2221 207 4
Capital and other items
- revaluation of Investments in associates {n) 36 76
- nel revaluation movements {v) 2157 B37
- net denvatives and Preference Shares expense {v) {41 1) {288 7)
Unclertying profit before tax {#), (v1) 233 4B
Profit/{loss) on ordinary activihes before tax {u) 2015 {212 5)
Tax (v (18 0) 1287
Profit/{loss) after tax ) 1835 B4 1)
Basic and diluted earnings/{losses) per share {wr) 159p (3 0in

Note

) See Note 5

(i} See the Consoldated Incoma Statement
(n) See Note 12

{v) See Note 6

(v) See Note 7

(vi) See Note 4

{vi} See Note 8




Chairman’s operational review

David Pntchard
Chairman

“The Board remains
confident that the Group's
integrated business model,
encompassing construction
and management, makes

it uniquely placed to sustain
and grow a property portfolio
capable of meeting the
challenges of both current
and future markets ”

Introduction

In 2012, the Companys mamn subsichary
Canary Wharf Group, made materal steps to
progress the next phase of development as it
responds to the demands and needs of the
new generation of business and residential
tenanis The topping out of 25 Chuictull Place
in February 2013 completes the Group's
onginal masterplan for the Canary Whall
Estate markng @ shift in emphasis towalds
a progressve 10 6m s ft development
ppelne  the largest of any developer n
London This pipeline will help ensure the
Group s continued diversification and growth

These exciting and nnovatve plans ae
currently centred on 2 developments in
particular the 5 25 acre site at the Shell Centre
on Londons South Bank and the 20 acre
Wood Whart site adjacent 1o the Estate

As 1t develops these sites beyond the ongnal
1988 vision centred on the Estate, the Gioup
remans committed te ensunng that London
remains a successiul and dynamic busingss
centre This vision has been central 10 the
Group s success 10 date and it will continue
to build onthis legacy through its developments
In other pants of Lendon

In ackcition to operational progress, 1IN August 2012
the Company secured approval from it
shareholders to amend the terms of its
Preference Shares which it viewed as lhe most
effecive way Of secunng efiicient long leim
finance for the Company The amendments
elminated potential short term refinancing
rsk at the same tine as reducing the cost
of the Preference Shares The Preference
Shareholder eatly redemption option was
1emoved and the time frame for refinancing the
£2750m of Preference Shares has been
extended by up to 7 years providing the
ability to refinance at & laler date v potentialty
mote favourable market condritons faciitating
the potential payment of future dvidends on
the Orclinary Shares

At the same time the Company also 1eceved
approval for a Share Buyback authority
permitting 1t {o make on market puichases
of up to 50% of the i1ssued share capital
subject 0 certan conditons This prowided
addibonal flexibility to 1sturn cash to Ordinary
Shareholders in an accretive manner Funded
by aggrepate dwdends of £799m from
Canary Wharf Group duning the penod
the Company repurchased 24 5m Songhird
Shares at an avorage price of £122 at an
aggregate cost of €30 3m Subsequent to

the penod the Board appraved further
repurchases up 10 an aggregate cost of
10 Om subject to certain conditions  To date,
under this authority, 29 526 Songbrd Shares
have been acquired at an aggregate cost
ol £35,602

Financial review

Adusted  NAV  per share was £2 10
at 31 Decembel 2012, compared with
£190 per share at 31 December 2011
an increase of 20p or 10 5% The year end
adiusted NAY compared with €% 92 per share
at 30 June 2012 an increase of 11p or 5 5%

The Shaie Buyback represented 3 2% of
the 1ssLed share captal and those Songbrd
Shares have subsequently been cancelled
The effect of the Share Buyback was 1o ncrease
adusted NAV at 31 December 2012 by 3p

The market value of the investmment portiolio
has increased by 3 4% over the year This was
dnven by an increase of 2 5% in the office
portfoko and a 99% increase In the retail
portfoke Yields on fully let office properties
haidened in the second hall of the year, with
the benchmark nmal yield reducing hy
approximately 25 bps The incigase n the
valuaton of the retal porifoho reflected
progress with the expansion of Jubdee Place
mall continued growth In passing rents and
a shght hardening in yields of approximately 10
bps over the year

including development sites, the market value
of the total portfolo Increasec by 4 1% over
ihe year adusting for capital expenditure and
the heneft of consoldating and revalung
Wood Whar for the first time subsequent to
the acquisition of the stakes previously held by
Balymore and BWB The increase in the
valuation ¢l the porifolio reflecting capital
expenditure since 30 June 2012 was 2 2%

Underlying profit for the year was £23 3m
In companson with £4 6m for 2011 The
increase of £18 7m was mainly attributable to
an Increase inhet property income of £14 6m

Al 31 December 2012, the Group had
unencumbered cash deposits of £618 ¥m
Folowing a restructunng of the interest rate
hedgng relaing to Ganary Wharf Groups
£350 Orn metald loan facility, the weghted
average cost of debt educed fiom 6 2% to
58% The weghted average maturty of its
loan taciities was 13 G years which compares
with the weghted average unexpired lease
term of 14 2 years assuming exercise of all
lease break options
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Chairman’s operational review continued

Canary Wharl West facing

Operational review

Throughout 2012, Canary Whart Gioup has
continued to positon itself to take advantage
of Londons new growth sectors Desgite a
challengng market, good piogiess 15 being
made n laying the foundations in puisuit of this
dwversification and demand

On the Estate, construction on the Crossrail
station continues to run ahead of schedule and
within budget The platform levet was handecl
over to Crossral in March 2012 to allow access
for the tunneling machines in spring 2013
Work 18 progressing well on the 115,000 sg ft
retal and leisure accommoedation above the
station with 87 000 sq ft scheduled to be open
for trade m Apnl 2015 Work on the 44,000 sy fi
extension of Jubilee Place mall s also on
schedule 1o open in Novermnber 2013, catenng for
the very strong demand for retall space there

The final pece of the Gioups ongmal
masterplan the 25 Churchill  Place
development, 15 on target for completon

n March 2014 and wil be one of the most
energy eficent buldings in London The
substructure ot this 525,000 sq ft buking
15 now completed and 50 0% of the bulkdng
has been prelet to the European Medicines
Agency which also has an option over an
addtional 108,000 sq ft Dunng the year
Canary Wharf Group entered into a £190 Om
construction and development loan faciity that
will be used to fund the construction of
25 Churchilk Place

The Group has planning permission for another
9 2m sq fi of mixed use space n the pipeline
al, or adjacent to the Estate At Canary Wharf
plans are being reviewed to maximise value n
respect of the commercial or mixed use
developments at One Park Place, Heron
Quays West and the residential development
at Newfoundland

The Group 15 priontising market dnven moere
focused developiments includmg the major
regeneration plans that are bemng put in place
for Wood Wharf The plans for this 20 acre site

represent a fresh era for the Group as
it responds to the demands of the next
generation of business and residential tenants
Anew masterplan for this site 1s currently being
developed whilst a comprehensive consullation
process with local communities 1s uncierway
The Group plans to caprtalise on the glohal
status of London as a business centre and to
attract and target growing business sectors
particularly technology and new media firms In
pursut of this aim, shorlly after the year end
the 28 000 sq ft "Level38" accelerator space
was launched at Canary Whart 10 encourage
inks between ihe growing technology
commumty and financial companes Level39
1s the largest accelerator space n Europe and
uniguety offers young companies in this sector
geographic proxinuty to financial companies
and tailored space in which to engage and grow

The: Group continues its progress in the City wath
preletting success at 20 Fenchurch Street which
15 held through a joint venture with Land
Secunties  Approximately 530% of ihis
37 storsy building 1s alleady pielet to a number
of nsurance sector companies including
Market Kin Group Ascot Underwriing Royal
Sun Allance, Liberty Syndicates and Liberty
Murtual The hulding has now heen toppead out
anct1s running en time: and within budget with
compiletion due in March 2014

The 5050 jont venture project at the Shell
Centre wilh Qatan Diar progressed o the
planning application  submission  stage n
December 2012 and it 18 hoped that cansent
will be receved dimg 2013 This lancmark
site on London s South Bank will ke enhanced
by a 14m sqg ft net mxed uso development
comprising office 1esidential and retail space
providng much neaded regeneraticn o
this area The existing 27 storey tower in the
mddle of the Shell Centre will be preserved
and retaned by Shell Shell will alse take a
240,000 sq ft prelet of one of the 2 new office
hudings to be construcied on the siie

Despite  demanding  economic  conditions
leasmg continues to  perform  reasonably
throughout the portfolic In addiion to the
50 0% prelet of 256 Churchill Flace and the
53 (% leting at 20 Fenchurch Street Canary
Whart Group renewed leases with Bank of
New York Mellon on 152,226 sq fi tor a term of
Byears ataient of £42 50 psf {10 4% ahead of
bult ERV) and there were further lettings of
approximately 25 000 sq ft to include leases
with rents i the range of £40 (0-5.43 00 psf
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Canary Wharf continues to be a leading centre
for retad and leisure anticipating and catenng
avery day for the needs of over 100 000 workers
based on the Estate The retal valuation rose
9 9% on the vear, while footfall ncreased 1 01%
on 2011 1in contrast to falliny foctfall al marty
other UK malls Despite a challenging year for
business, at the year end 100 0% of the Group's
retall units were fully let, with new cccuplers
including Alfred Dunhil, Kiehts, Blink Brow and
I'Entrecote  In additon  lethngs representing
44 0% of available space inthe 115 000 sq ft of
retall and leisure under construction above the
Crossral station are already in sohoiters hands,
alhead of ils opening n 2015 Inthe 44 000 sq it
expanson of Jubdee Place mal, 54 0% of
avalable space 1s already let or in solcitors”
hands, further underiining the dermand for high
qualtty retarl space on the Estate

Conclusion

The Company s cominitted 1o ensuting
that Canary Wharf Group continues to be
recognised as a developer of high gqualty
bespoke buldings designed to meet the needs
of a dwverse range of tenants OcCcupers
and commtinties

Voyage by Aelher and Hemera

The Group wil continue its commitment to
wotking hand in hand with communities to
realise the regeneration of areas in the East
End of London and arcund Londons South
Bank A scncs of significant buiding blocks
including  detaled  and  comprehensive
consultations at Wood What and the
Shell Centre, have been put in place In 2012 0
pursut of this am and the Group looks forward
to seeing these new progects come 1o frition
over the coming yeals

The Boaid iemans confident that the Group's
integrated business modsl  encompassing
construction  and  management, makes it
unauety placed to sustain and grow a property
porifolio capable of meeting the challenges
of both current and future maikets

David Pritchard
Chairman

Light installation at Middle Dock
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Business review

The {ollowing Business Review aims to provicde
shareholders with a summary of the business of
the Group both dunng the year ended and as at
31 December 2012 as well as summansing
significant cvents which have ocourred after
\his date

A st of defined terms used throughout these
financial staternents 1s provided in Defintions

Property portiolo

Tre pancipal asset of the Company s its indirect
mvestment i Ganary Whart Group which
Is engaged In property investment and
development and 15 currently pnimanly focused
on the development of the Estate Elsewhere
n London Canary Wharl Group s nvolved
through joint ventures in the redevelopment of
20 Fenchurch Stieet and the Shell Centre

In January 2012 1he Gioup completed ithe
acqustion of BWB's 50 0% interest in the Wood
Whati jont venture and was granied a new
ovemding 250 year lease of the site, which 15
aclacent to the Estate As a result the Group
achieved ful control of this scheme and

consequently transferred the carmrving value of
s combined investment to Properties held for
development within Non current assets Further
detals on the acquistion of this site can be found
N the Busingss Review — Wood Wharf

Al 31 December 2012 Canaty Whart Group's
nvestment  property  portfohe compnsed
16 completed properties {out of the 35
constructed on the Estate) totaling approxmately
70m sg ft of NIA Tre popertes included n
Canary Whart Groups investment property
portfoiic at 31 December 2012 ae shown in the
table below

Al 31 December 2012, the snvestment property
portfcho was 85 5% Jet (31 December 2011 -
985%) The weghted aveiage unexpred
lease term for the investrment portfolio at
31 December 2012 was approximately 15 5 years
or 14 2 years assuUming the exercse of outstanding
break options (31 Doecember 2011 — 16 2 years or
14 & years respectvely) Of the squaie footage
uncler lease ol 31 Decernber 2012 /o 3% does
not expire or cannet be terminated by tenants
tunng the next 10 years

As well as the rental sncome generated from
completed properiies ncome s generated
from managng the entre Estate which, n
adidiion to the completed properties owned by
Canary Wnarf Group at 31 December 2012,
ncludes 19 properties totaling 8 7m sy It in
other ownerships

Leasmng

In June 2012, the 20 Fenchurch Street joint
venture announced the first letiing n the building
for 51,000sq ft on levels 26 and 27 to Markel at
a rent of £6500 psf In September 2012
Kiln Group Limied leased 78 200 sq ft and
Ascol Underwnting leased 29,400 s fl on level
33 In December 2012, Roval Sun Allarce
leased 76 000 sq ft on levels 14 0 17 nclusive
Followng the letting of 66,300 sq ft to Liberty
Syndicates and 51,000 sq ft 1o Liberty Mutual in
February 2013 appioximately 53 0% of ihe
office: space s now ket The joint venture 1s also
in negetiations with other potential occupiers
of the buiting

Property address A s ft Leased % External vakabon [Lm) Foncyal tenants and sub tenants
One Churchill Place 10838,500 1000 7700 Barclays, BGC
10 Cabot Square/
5 North Colonnade 634 100 1000 4000 Barclays, WPP Group
20 Cabot Square/
10 South Colonnade 558 100 1000 3530 Barclays
Moodys Bank of New York Motlon Minor
One Canada Square 1,220,500 818 653 3 Gioup, FSA State Street, Euler Metlfe
33 Canatla Square 562 700 1000 3850 Citigroup
20 Bank Street 546 500 1000 4400 Morgan Stanley
40 Bank Stieet 606,000 851 3280 Shell Skadden Allen & Overy, ANZ, JLL
50 Bank Street 210 600 1000 1450 Noithern Tiust Goldenbeaig Hehmeyel
10 Upper Bank Strect 1027 300 1020 6750 Clfford Chance, FTSL, Total
Cabot Place Retal 141 60O 99 6 186 5| Boots Tesco Zara and other retal tenants
Canada Place Retall 71,300 1000 186 4 Gap Next and other retall tenants
Boots M&S Food, Wagamama and other
Jubilee Place Retall 93 500 1000 156 8 retall tenants
Barclays Jamie's |talian and other
Churchill Place Retail 34 900 000 203 retall tenants
Waitrose Food & Home Reebok,
16-19 Canada Sguare 213,600 998 829 Plateau Hestaurant
Reuters Plaza 8,900 1000 164 Carluccio s, Smollensky s
Uoyds Bank, Canteen, The Parlour,
Park Pavilion 22,800 1000 219 Roka and Wahaca
Car parks - - 429
Total 6,991,000 955 4,862 5




Occupancy

+95.5%

at 31 December 2012

Weighted average unexpired
lease term

Leasing continued

At Canary Wharf, the following leases were
completed in Ope Canada Square dunng the
year ended 31 December 2012

v 0 January 2012, Canary Whard Gioup
ienowed leases with Bank of New York
Mellon on 152,226 sq fi for a term of 8 yeais
from 1 January 2014 at a rent of £42 50 psf
{10 4% ahead of buit ERV) subject to an
18 month rent free penod There will be
tenant only break options over 2 floors
totalling 56 249 s ft n January 2019 subject
10 a 10 month rent penalty This lease
compales with the valuers' headhne ERV at
31 December 2011 of 38 50 pst for lettngs

greaier than 100,000 sq ft of existing space
1 £ ; e arS ¢ In Apnl 2012, Metlle took an addtonal
[ ] 12,900 sq ft on level 34 at a rent of £43 00 psi

or 14 2 years after break options

subject to a 15 month rent free period The
lease term 15 © years subject 10 2 break
opticn in October 2018 A further rent free
petnd of 6 months will be grantec in the
cvent the bicak option 1s not exercised
Metlfes break option in July 2012 over its
lease of 10,782 sqg ft on level 28 was not
exercised and this lease now runs through to
expiry in January 2015,

* Novarlis renewed s lease over 1,995 sqg ft
on level 34 for a further 3 years at a rent of
£40 00 pstf

+ Doyle Clayton Solicitors Limited took 1 066 s ft
on level 10 for a tenn of b years at a rent of
£42 50 psi subject to a 6 month rent free
penod There is a break option Lpon expiry of
the thiud year and «f the oplion 1s not exercised
an addmonal 4 month rent free period will be
granted Kingsley Hamilton took 2 603 sq ft
also onlevel 10 for aterm of & years at a 1ent
of £40 00 pst subject to a 6 month 1ent free
penod There s a break oplion at the exjry of
the third year, and

+ Telecom?2 Lirntted topk 3,206 50 ft on leved 29 for
a 5 year term at a rent of £41 50 subject toa 4
month rent free penod There 1s no break ophion

In 40 Bank Stieet Maypcle Energy has taken
3,553 sqft onlevel 19 foratermof Syears ata
rent of £42 50 psf subject 1o a ent free penod
of 4 months There 1s a break option upon
expiry of the third year of the lease and if the
option 18 not exercised an addiional 4 month
rent free penod wilk be grantad

Dunng the year, HSBC exerfised break options
over level 8 {27 104 sg 1) n One Canada Squaie
cffectve from March 2012 and over levels 7 and 9
ftotalng 54,224 s i) effectve from Cecemper
2012 Break options over a further 25,186 sg it
were also exarcised In the peniod

Ak options 1o sublet space back 1o Carary
Wharf Gioup have been exercsed and at
31 Decermber 2012 the estimated net present
value of sublet kabilibes was approxmately 126 1m
discountod at 6 2% hong Canary Whart Group's
weghled average cost ol dett for the year
{31 December 2011 - £310m discounted at
52%) These sublet commiments have been
reflected i the market valuation of Canary Wharf
Group’s properties

Retal

Retall and restaurants at Canary Wharf have
continued to perform well against a challenging
retal ermironment natonally Footfall for 2012
was up 1 11% on 2011 against a reduction ot
3 03% wn the national henchmark

New occupiers opening In 2312 included Alfred
Dunhifl Kiehls, Blink Brow and L Entrecote

At the year end the malls were fully fet with
encouraging demand from  Loth  existing
occupiers to expand and new entrants Chntons
entered admmnistiation i 2012 and terms were
agreed with the new owners, Amencan Greeting
Carcls io take an assignment of the lease and
refit the umit Since the year end In January
2013, both HMY and Jessops eniered into
administration The HMV store 1s lkely to be
sold as par of the core group 10 a new buyer
and continues to Lade Jessops has closed
and terms have been agreed with Ryman to
take the unit on a new lease at an increased rent

Retalers in Cabot Place continue to enjoy
stronger footlall and trading as the tenant mex
strengthens with the opening of the Dunhill and
enlargedd Church s units

The positive assel managemenl strategy lor
forthcoming lease exprries 18 progressing well
in Canacla Place Teims were agreed with
Boots to upsize and Hugo Boss to take a
second store Discussions with other key
retalers are progressing well

Positve outcomes were achieved on the rent
reviews that were completed in 2012 with
increases above ERV secured

Construction began i February 2012 on the
44,000 sq it expansion of Jublee Place mall
which wilk open for trade on 1 Novernber 2013
At 31 December 2012 16 of the 26 new units
weie exchanged or n solctors'  hands
representing 64 0% of the total income

Construction s progressing welf onthe 115,000 sq #t
of retal and leisure accommodation above
the Crossral station, of which 100,000 sq ft
15 retall Whthin the development, 87,000 sq ft
1s scheduted to open for trade In Apnl 2015,

07
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Business review continued

Retall continued

Crossrall

ahead of the actual staiion operuing in 2018
Solicitors have been mstructed on 6 lethings,
representing 4«4 0% of the avallable space and
38 0% of the total ncome

Construciion

As well as the retall expansion projects referred
to above work commenced on 25 Churchil
Place a new office bulcing of over 500,000 sq #
In August 2011, EMA agreed a prelet of 250 000 si ft
In this buikding

EMA wil occupy the promenade, ground
and first @ floors In the 20 siorey bulding
The agreed rent 15 £46 50 psf commencing
1 January 2015 with 5 yearly upwards ooly rent
reviews The length of the lease 1s 25 years with
o break options and EMA has staged opticns to
take an addtional 4 floors of arcund 27,500 sy ft
each EMA will eceve the equivalent of a
37 menth rent free peniod n cash which will be
used (0 pay for EMAS fit out n the bulding

Work on the building began in February 2012
and the structure was formally topped out
February 2013 Cladding and bulcing services
nstallaton are 0 progress  Construction 1s
on schedule for delvery with the EMA floots
fitted out in mid 2084 The balance of the
avalable space s benng maketed as
construction progresses

Canary Wharf Group 15 also actng as
construction manager for the development
at 20 Fenchutch Street (see Busingss Review -
20 Fenchurch Stree)

*The Group remains
committed to ensuring that
London remains a successiul
and dynamic business centre
This vision has been central
to the Group’s success to
date and it will continue to
buld on this legacy through
its developments in other
parts of London "

Dawvid Pntchard, Chairman

Construction commenced on the Crossral
station at Canary Whar in May 2009 and has
progressed aheat of schedule The platiorm
level was handed over io CLRL i March 2012
5 months ahead of schedule to enable access
for the tunnelling machines The station will be
provicied to CLRL for a fixed prnce of £350 Om
and Canary Whart Group Lears the nsk for the
difference between actual costs and the fixed
pce payable by CLRL The proect s
performmg well aganst budget The fust trains
are due to runin 2018 when Crossraill opens {or
passenger senice As referred 1o in the Retal
section, conslruction IS progressing  on
115 000 sy #t of retal and leisure space above
the station which will be subject 10 a bong lease {0
Canary Whar Gioup  The structure bas been
completed and nternal works have commenced

Canary Wharf Groups  contnbution  to
construction of the staton will be credited
aganst any Crassral Section 106 and/or CIL
contnbutions for certan agreed development
sites on the Estate (compnsing North Quay
Heron Quays West (neluding Newfoundlatd)
and Riverside South) which may be requied as
part of the London Plan Accordingly, any costs
borne by Canary Whar! Group on construction
of the staton were allocaled to these
development properties

Wood Wharf

On 18 January 2012, Canary Wharf Group
announced it had acquired full control of the
Wood Whart jont venture and had entered into
a new overtiing 250 year lease of the site

CGI 20 Fenchurch Steet View from the Sky Gardan

Canary Whart  Group  secured 100 0%
ownershp of Wood Wharf by combining its
ohgnal 25 0% effectve mterest with the 75 0%
ntexests acquired flom its joint venture partrers
BWB and Ballymoic It also agreed the
restruciunng of BWB's angoing particyation as
freeholder of Wood Whart As a resutt Canary
Wharf Group now has control gver the timing
and desgn of this scheme

Wood Wharf will be a new mixed use
development scheme adiacent to the existing
Estatc In May 2009, the current master plan
recenved outing planning consent for 4 6m sq ft
net Fhis consent which was renewed m 2012
and represents an area almost one third of the
sze of the Estate, cuwrently compnses
approximately 1 25m sq ft of residential, 3 1misq ft
of offices, 0 2msg ft of retal and a 0 2m s ft hotel
Detalled consent was granted on the 3 office
huldings closest to the Estate totaling 1 5m sq ft
net In July 2009 Having secured full control of
the schema, the best uses for the site are baing
reviewed potentially atteing the mx of uses in
favour of reswental, reducing the size of
ndmdual office buildings to appeal to new
larget sectors and to integrate and connect this
new distnet 1o the existing Estate Woik on the
revised master plan 15 progressing and it 1S
envisaged that applcation for a revised outline
planning consent will be submitted in late 2013

The acqustion of Ballymores interest was
complsted 1 December 2011, for a
consideration of £38 Om The consideration for
the subsequent acguistion of BWB's 50 0%
nterest n Wood Wharf in January 2012 was
£52 4m together with a restructured 250 year
lease that wil see an annual ground rental
payment to BWB ncreasing to £6 Om by 2016




For the remander of the lease, this ground rent
will be subject to upwards only reviews inked 1o
the passing rent achieved on the office buldings
and the ground rents paid by puichasers of the
resiclential apartnients bult in the scheme The
£62 4 payment compnses an  upiront
payment of £4 4m and a senes of 4 annual
payments up to and including 2015

Canrary Wharf Group has also acquired cernain
othet properly interests N connection with
Waood Wharf which are integial ta the futuee
development of this site

Other development sites

One Park Place benefits from plarining consent
for approximately 950,000 sq #t of development
but Canary Wharf Group plans to submit a new
apphcabon for a revised scheme of approximately
650 000 sq ft In due course

Heron Quays West has consent for an office
scheme of over 1 3im sy ft However, a number
of alternatve development options both for
office and also mixed cffice and residential use
are being considered

Consent has been granted on the adacent
Newfoundland site for 230,000 sq ft of hotel
and serviced apartments An alternatve all
residential concept of over 400000 sq it 1s
curren'ly Lemg explored

The remaning development site at North Quay
has planning congent for almost 2 4m sg ft

In summary the total development capacity at
each of Ganary Wharf Group's development
sites, excluding sites under development
1S outhned in the tabie below

The site at Rwverside South was acoured by
JP Mogan in November 2008 and
Canaty WhaiT Group was appointed to act as
development and construction manager under
a contract with a term ta October 2016

The contract includes a nght of first offer In
the eveni J P Morgan decides to sell the site
J P Morgan bas mstrucied Canary Wharf Group
to proceed with the rext phase of infrastructure:
works congsisting of nver watt protection utities
instaflation and the lower ground level floor slab
and these are now progressing wel with
compiction targeted for the last quarter of 2013

Canary Wharf Group has recenved £/t Orm as an
acvance of developer's profit in conunciton with
the development This sum will be set aganst
Canary Wharf Group's enttlement to future profits
if J P Morgan proceeds with full construction

20 Fenchurch Street

11 2010, Canary Whari Group and Land Secunties
formed 20 FSLP, a 50 50 jont venture to clevelop
20 Fenchurch Street in the Gity The exsting
property, which was acquired as a cleaiedt sie
with some ancillary neighbounng holdings, was
soki by land Secunies to the partnership
for a consderation of £902m n kne with the
Masch 2010 valuation After syndication Canary
Wharf Group has retained a 15 0% equity interest
n this project

Planning consent for a 37 stoiey bulding was
granted n October 2008 The bulding will
provide approximatey 690,000 sg ft of world
class space i floor plate sees of 14 000 sq ft o
28,000 sg ft, with a sky garden on the top
3 floors Constructon commenced on site in
Janhuary 2011 and 1s progressing on schedule
and withun brdget The buikiing has been topped
out and completion 1s expected in March 2014

Canary Wha! Contractors Limited, & wholly
owned subsidiary of Canary Whart Group, was
appointed as sole construction manager Land
Secunties and Canary Whard Group were
appointed as oint ticvelopment managers and
both are responsible for leasiy As referred 10 in
the Business Review — Leasing 20 Fenchurch
Street 1s cureently 53 0% prelet

Shell Centre

tn July 2011 Canary Whart Group and Qatan
Diar concluded an agreement to redevelop the
Shell Centre Canary Wharf Group and Qatan
Diar have entered into a 50 50 jont venture and
have committed to contnbuting £150 Om each
1o the joint venture to secure the 5 25 acre site
on a 999 year lease Canary Whari Groups
contribution s being met friom existing corporate
resources The aggregate L300 Om payment
for the stte 15 conditional on planning permission
beng receved for the project wathin 3 years
Canary Whart Group will act as construction
manager for the project and will also be jont
development manager with Qatan Diar The
jont development manager fees generateci
from the iransaction are being apporioned
between the parties

The development will be mixed use, compnising
office residential and retal space which wil
regenerate an smportant sectron of the South
Bank in central Londen The existing 27 storey
tower m the middle of the Shell Centre will be
preserved ard retained by Shell Shell will also
take a 245,000 sq ft prelet of one of the 2 new
office buildings 16 be constructed on the sie

The ot ventuie parties submitted a planning
applicaton for 1 4m sq ft {net) in December
2012 and are working towards acheving
consent dunng the course of 2013

Total developrment pipaline NIA
msg it

Canary Wharl, based on existing planning pernussions

- Norih Quay 239

- Heron Quays West 133

- Newfoundiand 023

- One Park Place {(pioposed developrment) 065

- Wood Whart 4 60

920

Sold to J P Morgan

- Rwerside South (Canary Whart Group acting as development and construction manager) 190

In joint ventute with Qatan Diar

- 8hell Centre {ses Business Review — Shell Centre) 140
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Business review continued

Valuations

The net assets of the Group, as stated in is
Consolidated Balance Sheet at 31 December 2012,
were £1 774 4m In armving at this 1otal

(i properties held as investments were carred
at £4 676 im, which represents the market
value of those properties of £4 862 5m at that
date as determined by Canary Whart Group s
external valuers, GBRE, Savills o Cushiman,
less an adustment of €178 7m for tenant
incenives and £77m Jor defemed lease
negotiation costs,

(i} properties under construction were carned at
£1358m 1epresentng the market vafue of
thoso sites of €137 5m as detormined by
Canary Whar! Groups extemal vallers, less
an adustment of €1 7m for defetred lease
negotiation costs, and

{iny propertes held for development were camed at
C4700m  representing ther market value of
£4150m adusted by £550m for the present
value of the mimmum ground rents payable uncler
the 250 year lease of Wood Wharf At incepton of
the kease this hability was separately recognised
within Non current habilities

At 31 December 2012 the yekds appled in derving
the market valuaton of Canary Wharf Groups
investment properties are summansed below

The retal portiolo agan performed strongly
with market value increasing by & 9% m the year
lhis ncrease was driven n part by a shight
hardening inyelds, n part by rental growth and n
part by progress made with the expanson of the
Jubllee Place mall The market value of the office
portfolic ncreased by 25% ovel the same
penod pamanly as a result of a tghtening N
yelkis in the second half of the year For rack
iented office propertes such as One Churchill
Place and 33 Canada Square, the initial yeld
reduced by approximately 25 bps o 5 125%

N the case of Churchil Place and 5 0% i the
case of 35 Canada Square

Taking office and retal together the market
valug of the investment portfolo ngreased by
£1620m or 3 4% in 2012 After allowing for
adaditons and adjusiments in respect of tenant
incentves the carnpng valug of the Investment
portioho Increased by £147 8m o 3 3%

in the second half of the vear, the valuaton of the
rvestment portfolo increased by £1285m o1
27% and the camying value ncreased by
£1229m or 2 7% after addtons This increase
was driven by the tightening in yields for the office
portiolio, resulting n an ncrease In market value of
24% and the contnued growth n the retad
portfolo which ncreased n value by 4 8%

The valuers have also provided ther opinions of
the maiket value for sites held for development
Dunng the yeas Canary Whatf Group achieved
full ownership of Wood Wharf which has been
transferred from Investments to Development
propenies (see Business Revew — Wood
Wharf) 25 Churchill Place which was previously
classified as a Development property, was
transfened to Properties uncler construction on
commencement of shell and coie works In
Febiuary 2012 (see Business Revew -
Construction)  Crossral  retal was  akso
transferred frcm Development propertes to
Properles  urxder consbruction  dunng  the
second half of the year The other development
stes held throughout the penod compnsed
North Quay, Heron Quays West Newfoundland
ancl One Park Place These sites were valued in
aggregate at £215 0m at 31 December 2012
which represenis an increase of 4 4% aftes
transfers compared with the market value at
31 December 2011

Wood Wharf 15 subject to a 250 year lease (see
Business Review — Wood Wharf) and the net
present value of the ground rents payable under

the terms of the lease was estimated at £55 Om
at lease nception For accounts purposes the
siie was carned at a gross vakation of £255 0m
compnsing the market value of the site of
£200 Om together with a labiity of £55 0m in
respect of the ground rents  payable
Subseqguent Imovements In the carrying value of
this labilty are disclosed in Note 22

The properties under construction were valued
at L1375m (31 December 2011 - £96 0m)
The valuation of these sies i1s stated by the
valuers net of prowsion for developers profit
of £837m whch will be released as the
properties are lat up and approach completion

The market value of the entire property porticho,
after adjusting for the acoustion of Wood Wharf
and other addibons, increased by £211 3m or
4 1% Ths increase in value was dnven in part
by the lghtening n yields and in parl by the
progress achieved on the development sies

The valuations at 31 December 2012 are based
on assumptions which include fulure rental
Income anticipated void costs  the appropnate
aiscount rate or yield and, n the case of
development properties the estimated costs of
completion In addibion the valuations allow for
letting cisposal marketing andl financing costs
In valung the properties on the Estate valuers
also take account of market ewvidence which
ncluded the lettings completed N the year
referred to earlier in this Busmess Review

As previously disclosed, a number of properties are
subject to lkeases back to Canary Wharf Gicup
These have been taken into account n the
valuations summansed in the table on page 11,
which shows the camyng value of Canary Whari
Group’s poperties for acLounts purposes
companson with the supplementary valuations
provided by the external valuers

31 December 30 June 31 Decerhar
2012 2012 2011
% %y %
Office portfolio
Waighted average initial yiele? 50 51 51
Waighted average equivalent yield 54 55 54
Retall portfolo
Weighted average nitial yield 50 50 51
Weighted average equivatent yield 51 52 52




Valuaticns continued

31 December 2012 30 saune 2012 21 December 2311

Market Markei Warket
value in value I valug In
Carrying exsting Camying exiring Camng oxsung
value state valuo stato value state
Note £m £m £m £m m £m

Retained portfolio
Investment properties 0] 4,676 1 4,862 5 45439 47340 £ 5097 47005
Froperties under construction {1 1358 1375 943 a6 0 — —
Properties held for development ) 4700 4150 468 5 4135 2618 293 5
52819 54150 51067 52435 48015 4,994 0

Soid property

Property under construction at Rverside South {v) 696 1397 67 1 134 9 756 1357
53515 55547 51738 5378 4 4877 1 51277

Nole

i Tho camying value represents marxet value fess an aclustment for lease NCentves and cefored lease negobiaton costs The tenant incertves and deferred lease negota on costs

acdhustrment at 31 Decembe 2012 was £188 4m (30 June 2002 - £190 1m 21 December 2011 — £190 Brm) Market vadlie 1N e<sting state 15 SNOWN 0ror 10 ese anounts

(i} Progerties held for development at 31 Cecernber 2011 included 25 Ghurchill Place which has been reclassriedl 1o Propartes unuer constuction follow ng comnmencernent of shell
ana core works i February 2012 Pracertes held for sevelopment at 31 December 207 and 30 June 2012 also ncluded Crossrad retal This has neen raclassifed 10 Properies
wnrigr constructon follovang the commencement of construchion N the second half of 2312 The camying value of properties unde cons rustion repeserts rrarket value kess an
ackustiment for deferred lease negotieition costs of £1 Tm

(it Properties held or clevelopment at 21 December 2012 andt 20 June 2012 nclude Wood Whart subject to a 250 year lease The present value of the ground rents payable under

this lease was calculatedt at £35 Om at ncepton end af 31 Decernbe 2072 (Note 22) The market value n existing sta.e s snow~ pror i3 tis amount

The canyinyg value al 31 Decermber 2012 rearesents £66 6 of costs transferied to cust of sakes (30 June 2012 - 251 im o1 Decermber 2011 - C81 Omy and £3 Om translenagd

to paymants enaccoant (30 kne 201, —180mM 51 Decernber 2011 — £14 B Market val 5 n exsing state inck Jes the present valle of the minimum developer < profit friom

Z

the sale of Rversoe Sout assurnng J P Morgan does ot proceed wih full bul cu, and excludies the profit recogrisedt on e disposal of tha site in 2003

“The market value of the
Investment portfolio has
Increased by 3 4% over the
year This was driven by an
increase of 2 5% in the office
portfolio and a 9 8% increase
in the retall portfolio "

Dawvid Pnichard, Charrman

Reuters Plaza
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Business review continued

Underlying profit before tax

£23.3m

for the year to 31 December 2012
{2011 £4 6m}

Operating resulis

The: followng renea of the Group's operating resutts
relates to the year ended 31 December 2012
The comparatves relate to the year ended
31 December 2011

Revenue 1s generatad primanly by the rents and
sovice chargaes carned by Canary Whart Gioup
from its property interests on the Estale together
with turnover  recognised  on construction
contracts and fees eamed from construction and
development management agreements  Total
revenue for 2012 was U361 6m, aganst
£352 3m for 2011, of which rental income after
the adustments requred to spread lease
incentives  and commitial  rent increases
increased from £250 Om to £259 4m

The impact of spieading lease ncentves was to
ieduce rental ncome by £4dm n 2012
compared with £1 3im in 2011 Excluding the
accounting adjustments ansing rom spreading
tenant ncentves rental Income Increased from
£251 3m in 2011 1o £263 8m in 2012, an
increase of £12 5m or 5 0% partly attrbutable
to the expiry of rent free penods and partly as a
resuft of Increased retail rents

Service charge Income ncreased from £75 2m
for 2011 1o £72 4m, an increase of £4 2Zm ar
56%  Miscellaneous income,  including
nsurance rents, the provision of tenant specific
sarvices outside the standard service charge
and fees recognised on the provision of
development and construction managerment
services reduced from £216m for 2011 1o
£16 9m for 2012 Dunng 2012, Canary Whart
Group recognised £03m of income N
connection with the termination by tenants of
certain leases on the Eslate (2011 - 20 1m)

Turnover and cost of sales for 2012 also included
£5 6m recogrised on the constructon contract
for Bverside South compared with £54m n
2011 No profit has been recognsed on the
construction contract entered iNto N connection
with the sale of Rversdle South atthough the
potental surpius has been taken inte account
In calcutating achusted NAV (see Note 43

Cost of saks ncludes rents payable and property
managasment costs, movements on provsions for
certan lease cormmiments, as wel as cosis
recognsed on consinicton contracts  Rents

payable and property management cosis weme
£06 1m for 2012 m companson with £101 1m for
2011 Takng mnto account senace charge and
muscelanecus property income totaling £93 Smior
2012 (2011 — £205 6m) a cefict was recorded on
property management of £2 8m (2011 - £5 5m)
This deficl was allnbulable to unlet space on
which serce charges were not recoverable

An increase In provisons of £0 6m before any
adjustment foi discounting was recogrused in
2012 relating to certain rent support commitments
and other cbhgatiorns This compaied with an
ncrease of £1 9min 2011 Cost of sales for 2012
dlso ncdwded £0 9m of digpidations ard other
costs atinbutable to the termination of leases
2011 -201m)

MNet development rental and related income for
2012 was £258 4m, an ncrease of £14 6m
compared with 2011 atinbutable to the factors
referred 1o above

Adimimnistrative expensges for 2012 were 38 6im
n companson with £43 6m for 2011 The
recluction i administiatve  expenses  was
parmanty attnbutable {0 lower staff costs and
a retiuction In leasing and pofessionat fees

These eductions were partly offset by increased
markeling costs

Unlertying operating profit (as defined n Note 4)
for 2012 was £222 1m i compariscn with
£207 dmior 2011 Of the increase of £14 7m,
£94m was attnbutable tc the mncrease in
recognised rental income and £50m to the
reduction in administraive expenses

A net revaluation swplus of £215 7m (Note 6)
was recognised in the Consolidated Income
Statement inihe year compared with £63 7min
2011 The changes in the valuation of the
propeity portfolo are explaned in more detal n
Business Review — valuations The Group also
recognised is share of the revaluation surplus
recorged on 20 Fenchurch Street totafling £3 6m
lor2012{2011 -£7 6m) Revaluation movements
are classied as a caprtal and other item

Jotal cperatng proft for 2012 was £441 4m
compared with £278 7m n 2011 The increase
was aitnbutable to mvaluaton  movements,
together with the other factors referred 1o above




Operating results continued

Underiing net financing costs (Note 7) for 2012
were £198 Bm aganst £2028m for 2011
Undertying net financing costs are stated net of
£6 3m of general interest pavable which has been
capitabsedt and transferred] 1o Properties under
constructon N Non current assets This amount
formod part of the interest payable on Canary
Wharf Group’s general Lomowings which are
deerred io have been uthsed n financing the
propertes under construction  Exclcling  the
capitalsaton of general mterest payable the
ncrease i undertying net intersst payahle of
£23m was pimanly attnbutable to a £54m
finance chaige relating to the capiahisation of
Wood Wharf ground rent obligations together with
nterest payable on the kan notes assurmed
or issued n connechon with the acquistion of
Wood Whart These iaciors were partly offsat by
scheduled loan amortsation

Movements N the far value of denvative financial
nstuments and the finance costs of non equity
shares 1esulted in a net charge of £41 1m being
recognised In the Consolidated Income Statement
as a Capital and other tern in 2012 compared

Canary Wnart East facing

with £288 7min 2011 The finance cost relating to
the non equty shares reduced from £28 4m in
201110 £27 Brnn 2012 as aresult of the vanation
to the 1errns of the Preference Shares refened toin
Note 24

The profit for the year belore tax for 2012 was
£201 5m 1 companson with a loss of £212 8m
for 2011 The resuits for 2012 and 2011 included
certan caprtal and other profits and losses as
descnbed above Underlying profit before tax for
2012 was £23 3m (2011 — £4 6m)

Tax for 2012 compnsed a colporation tax credt of
£75m and a defened tax charge of £255m

In 2011 tax compnsed a corporation tax charge of
£0 1m and a deferred tax credit of £128 8m The
cetened tax credilin 201 1 was pamandy attnbutable
to EZAs clamed in pnor penocls as disclosed n the
Tax section of this Business Review

The profit for the year after tax for 2012 was
£183 5m In comparison wih a lpss of 84 1Tm
for 2011

The basic and diuted earmings per share (Note 4}
for 2012 was 159p {2011 - losses of 90p)

There were no adjustments required inrespect of
diirve instruments at either 31 December 2012
or 31 December 2011

Tax

lhe contingent tax payable | Canary Whart
Group was to dispose of s owned property
porticho at the market values disclosed n this
Business Review 1s included in the revaluation
suphis comgonent of the net deferred tax
balance recognised at each balance sheat date

The tax position of the Group s further disclosed
i Note B

Share buyback

In 2012 the Company repurchased for
cancellation 24 508,820 of ts own shares at
an aggiegale cost mncluding fees of £30 3m
The Board has appioved a further ©1C Om
N aggregate to repurchase its own shares
subject to certan condiions (Note 24) of which
£35 609 has been utilsed subseguent to the
year enc
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Business review continued

Adjusted NAV per share

£2.10

at 31 December 2012
(2011 £190)

Consolidated balance sheet and key
performance indicators

Net assets in the Group's Consolidated balance
sheet were £1,774 dm at 31 December 2012 n
comparison with £1,729 2m at 30 June 2012
and £16534m at 31 December 2011 The
Increase N net assets cver the year of £121 Om
was pnmarly attnbutable to the profit after tax
for theyear of 2183 &5m which ncilides valuation
movements on the property portioko and on
dervative financial Instruments, partly offset by
dvidends pad by Canary Wharf Group to
mnonty interests of £35 2m and the £30 3m
aagregate cost of the Share Buyback

The increase in net assets snce 30 June 2012 of
£452m was attibutable to the proft n the
secondg half of the year of £101 2m  which
included the increase in the valuation of the
property portfolio n the second half of £120 3m,
partly ofiset by the aggregate cost of the Shaie
Buyback of £30 3m and the dridend paid to non
controling interests in the penod of £27 4m

The Companys objctve 15 to manage ts
nvestment m Canary Wharf Group 80 as to
meaximise NAV from managhg s nvestment
properties and property development, although
the Group 15 impacted by movernents in the
wider property markel The Board considers
that the most appropnate ndicator of the
Group s performance 18 adjusted NAY par share

attnbidable to members of the Company This
measwre serves to capture the Boads
udgements  concerning  inter alia,  leting
strateqy redevelopment and financial sttucture

Adjusted NAV per share ncludes the valuation
surplus on construction contracts bt excludes
defered tax and far valle acjustments on
demnvatives Adusted NAY per share increased from
£190 a 31 December 2011 t© £210 at
31 December 2012, an increase of 20p or 105%
pel share Inthe second half of 2017 adjustad NAV
€ share increased by 11p per sham or 5 5% fiom
£199 at 30 Jure 2012 Of the increase n adjusted
NAV 3p can be aitnbuted 10 the Share Buyback and
the remander of the mcrease 1s atinbutable to the
{actors noted above (see Note 4)

The calculation of adjusted NAV per share 1s set
out i Note 4 Adjusted NNNAV per share 1s set
oul In the table below

As a resull of the Share Buyback the number of
Crddinary Shates 1n ssue reduced from 764 Gm
10 7404m at a cost of £303m Reversing the
impact of the Share Buyback on a proforma basis
at 31 Detember 2012 would have resulted i an
adusted NAV atinbutable to members of the
Company of £1 586 8m and an adjusted NNNAY
of £11148m On the bask of the pie Shae
Buyback number of Orcinary Shares of 764 Om,
adjusted NAV per share would have baen £2 07
and adjusted NNNAY per share £1 46

31 December 30June | 31 December

mz 2012 2011

Note Em £m £m

Adiusted net assets attribitable to members of the Company )} 1,556 5 16253 14521
Fan value adjustment in respect of financial assets and labilibics net of tax thereon n {665 3} 515 7) (476 5)
Deferred tax () {15 1} {10 8) 14 3
Non controlling interest in above adjustments 208 4 1813 1416
Adjusted NNNAV 1,084 5 1,160 1 113158
Adjusted NAV per share {i), (v £2 10 £199 £1 90
Adjusted NNNAV per shale {v) £1 46 £152 £148

Note
iy Refer to Note 4

iy Comprises the marl to market of deratves n Note 4 and the afier tax difference between the market value and book value of debt cisclosed m Note 21

{n) Refer to Note 8

{w) Calculation basedl on 740 4m Ordinary Shares in ssue at 31 December 2012 (30 June 2012 and 31 Dacember 2011 — 764 om Orchnary Shares)




Treasury objeclives

The prncipal objectves of the Groups treasury
furction are 1o ensure the avalahilty of finance
o meet the Groups cunent and anticipated
regurements and to minmise the Group's cost of
capral The treasury funchon operates as a cost
centra 1ather than a piofit centre and does not
engage in the trading of financial nstruments

The Groups financial mstruments, other than
denvatives, compnse borrowings, cash and
lgud resources and vanous items such as
tracle recenables and trade pavables that anse
hrectly from its operations The Group enters
nto dervative transactions (principally interest
1ate swaps) only In cider to manage the interest
rate nsk ansing from the Group s vanable rate
borrowings  Details of the financial nsks facing
the Group are disclosed earler n this saction
and in Note 21

Borrowings

As part of the Company's refinancing n 2009
the Company 1ssued £275 0m of Picference
Shares carying a quarterly coupon of 2 5%
payable 1 arears On 30 August 2012 the
terms of the Preference Shares were amended
as explaned n Note 21 This seived to educe
the coupon payable to 8 76% after hedging
Fees totaling £7 2m were ncuncd on the
amendment which have been deferred and
will he amortised over the remaining Ife of
the Preference Shares

I December 2011 Canary Wharf Gioup entered
nto a £3180 Om development loan faciity 1o fund
the construction of a new buid ng at 25 Churchil
Flace The facility cames nterest at 3 month
LIBOR plus a margn of 300 bps unté rent
commencement  faliowing which the margin
may drop 1o 250 bps of 225 bps, subpct 1€
satisfacton  of Certan nterest cover tests
A forward starting interest rate swap was entered
intc in Octoher 2012 at a rate of 1017%, which
fixes the nterest rate payable uncer the lpan The
fxed rate payable duing the construction phase
inchuiding the 300 bps margn, 18 402%
The termination date under the swap 1S In
December 2016 The loan 1s also subject to a
maxmum LTV coverant of 650% and
15 1epayable n December 2016 Finance costs
incurred on this ioan dunng the construchon of the
buiding will be caprtalised and rcluded as part of
the cost of construchion The first drawciown
uncier thes loan facity was in January 2013

In December 2012 the Group cancelied the
interest rate swap relating to the £350 Om loan
faciity secured against ts ntesests in refad and car
parking The interest rate swap was broken at a
cost of 228 1m nelucling foes (Note 21(3) and a
new interest rate swap was entered into which
served 1o fix the niterest rate payable under e
loan at 3 3% compared with 7 2% previously The
cost of breaking the Interest rate swap compares
with a far value of £36 Om which was incluced in
Denvatve financial instruments in Non curment
labites at 31 December 2011

At 31 December 2012, net debt (ncludmg
denvative financial nstiuments at far value net
ol monetary deposts and cash and cash
equvalents) stood at £3,442 3m, an increase of
£226 0m from £3,216 3m at 31 December 2011
The componenis of net debt aie shown in
Note 21

Total bonowngs oduced fom £4 216 3m at
31 Decermmber 2011 to £4,194 3m pnmardy as
a result of scheduled loan amorbsation lotalng
£74 7m, parily offset by the ssue o loan notes in
connection with the acquesition of Wood Whart

The reducton in totial borowings was
accompanied by a reduction in cash and cash
eguivalents flom £996 1m to £7497m The
reduction in cash was parly attnbutable to
construction ani developiment expenditure and
the nvestment n asspcidles and jont veniures,
ncluding the accuistion of BWB's interest
n Wacd Wharf In addiion Canary Wharf
Group pad dwidends dunng the year
of 2115 1m of which £352m was pad to
non controling Interests

The Group’s weighted average cost of debt for
the year was 6 2% (2011 - 6 2%) including
credit wraps hut excluding the coupon on the
Preference Shares The weighted average cost
of debt at the year end had ietiuced to 5 B% as
a result of the rates payahie on the debt entered
nto on the acguistion of Wood Whart and the
reduced rate payable on the ietal loan facility
following bieakage of the ielated nterest rate
swap The Group borows at both fixed and
floating rates and uses Nterest rate swaps or
caps to moxify exposuie to nlerest rate
fluctuations Except for certan elements of the
debt assired n connection with the acquistion
of Wood Wharf substantially all of the Group s
drawn facities are fixed after taking account of
interast rate hedging and cash deposits held as
cash collataral

Cash flow

Cash generated from operatng actvities
for 2012 was 242 4m 1in comparison with
£254 Om for 2011 This reduction was pumarily
attrbutable to changes in working capital ofiset
by ihe increase in renfal Income In 2012, as
referred to above, Canary Wharf Group incurred
£29 1m on breaking the interest rate swap
relaing lo the £3500m loan facilty secured
aganst Canary Whard Group's retal and car
parking property intetests as disclosed in the
Borrowings section of this Business Review
Net coiporaton tax mfunds of £2 6m were
receved In 7012 cormpared with payments of
£2 1min 201

Cash flows fiom investing actvities resulted n a
cash outflow of £118 6m for 2012 compared
with £85 9mfor 2011 In 2012 the cash outflow
inclucled £75 1m of development expenditure
and £43 3m nvested In associated and joint
venture undenakings including payments macle
to secure 100 0% ownership of Wood Wharf
In 2071 the cash outflow included £22 7m of
development expenditure on properties 1o be
retaned by Canary Whart Group and investment
in associates of £609m wheh scluded the
investment in the Shell Centre and the acquisition
of Balymore's nterests n Wood Whart

Cash flows from financing actvities for 2012
1esulted 0 zn outflow of £108 7m compaiedd with
237 2m for 2011 The 2012 cash flows mclucied
74 7m of scheduled loan amoriisation £30 3m
for 1he Share Buyback and £35 2m of dvideris
pad by Carary Wharf Group to s mnorty
shareholders The 2011 cash flows inCluded
£92 3m before lees drawn down on the loan
facity secured aganst 50 Bank Street offset by
£660m of scheciuled amortisabon on Canary
Whait Gioups secustisation and other secured
debt £42 4m pad to restructure the finance lease
ablgaton and a £13 8m dadend paid by Carary
Whart Growp te its minonty shareholders, togethen
with £7 3m on the acquistion of Crdnary Shares
hy the Trust
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Risks and uncertainties

Principal rnsks and uncertanties

Continuous monitonng of the prncipal nsks and uncertanties facing the husmess of the consolidated Group s undertaken through regyulal assessment
and formal quarterly reports to the audit committees and hoards of both the Company and Canary Whar! Group The boards and audit committees of
the Group focus on the nsks dentified as pait of the Groun's systems of internal contiol which Pighlight amongst cthers, key nsks faced by the Group
and aliccate specific day to day montorng and contiol 1esponsibilities as appropriate The cunent key nsks of the consolidated Group include
concentration sk cychical nature of the property market, financing nsk and polcy and planning nsks These nsks are outhined in the table helow

Risk and descrniption

Concentration risk

Mitigation

The majonty of the Gioups real estate assels
are currently locatea on or adjacent to the
Estate with a majonty of tenants lnked to the
financial services industry

Cyclical nature of the property market

Wherever possible staps are taken to mitrgate or avord matenal consequances ansing from this
concentration and to dwersify the tenant base Although the focus of the Group has beerr on and
around the Estate, where value can be added Canary Wharf Group will also consider oppartunities
elsewhere Canary Wharf Group 15 now involved i jomt ventures developing 20 Fenchurch Sireet
and the Shell Centre and I1s also reviewing the current consent for development at Wood Wharf
wiich 1s hikely to appeal to a more diverse range of tenants

The valuation of the Group's assets Is subject
10 many external econornic and market
factors The turmol n the financial markets
and uncertamty in the Eurozone in recent years
have been reflected in the property market by
such factors as a significant decling in tenant
demand for space in London the oversupply
of avalable space in the office market and
changing market perceptions of propaily as an
nvestment resulting N vanalions 0 property
valuations in general

Financing nisk

tear s of an oversupply of avalable space i the market have been mitigated by the difficulty in
secunng finance for speculative development leating to reduced supply The market has also
been assistod by the contmumg presence of overseas mvesiors altracted by tha relatve
transparency of the real estate market in London which 1s stif viewed as both stabla and secure
Changes in financial and property markets are kepl under constant review so that the Group can
react appropriately and taillar the business plans of the Group accordingly White the Group has
no drect exposure to the Furo, the ongoing uncertainty reflecting ssues in the mactoeconomy,
particulariy rolating to the Eurozone continues to impact the real estate market The impact
of these uncertambes is closely inormtured

Tha bmadler economic cycle nevitably leads to
movements N nilaton  nterest rates and bond
yekis The Group finances its operations largely
through a nmixture ol suplus cash  secured
bormowng and debentures The ongoing uncertamty
i financial markets continues o sigruficantly it
the avaiabifty of fundng n common with other UK
property companies such lach of financing faciites
may have an impact on the busness of the Group
i the lending market remars restcted for the
foreseeabie future

Policy and planring risks

The Group borrows at hoth fixed and floating rales and uses interest rate swaps to modify
exposure to interest rate fluctuations After taking account of interest rate hedging a#f of the
Group's man faciiies are fixed fong term loans

The Board continues to montor the fnancial markets with the am of wWentifying an appropriate
financing anangement for the Company The weighted average matuity of the Group’s loans
axclucing the Prefarence Shares 1s 13 O years Further detai on the management of treasury nsk
can be found n the Business Rewiew - Tieaswry objectives and Note 21 which inchides
a summary of the key financial covenanis apphicable to each of the Group s faciities

At 31 Dacemnber 2012 there were £275 Om of Preference Shares i issuie The nights attaching
to the Preference Shares which were vaned dunng the year are disclosed in Note 24

Changes in governmental policy on planning or
tax could Imit the ability of the Group to
maxinise the long term potential of its assets

All of the Group's assels are cumently located within London Approprate contact 1s mamiained
wilh local and national government and these risks are closely monitored




Board of directors

Directors

Al directors of the Company are non executive directors

David Pntchard

independent non executive Chairman appainted to the Board in September 2005 Currently non executive
charman of AIB Group (UK} plc and a non executive director of Motabity Tenth Annversary Trust and
Euromoney Institutional PLC Previcusly non executive deputy chairman of Lioyds TSB Group ple, chairman
of Cheltenham & Gloucester plo and Morgan Stanley Card Services Liouled and director of the
Dution-Forshaw Motor Company Limited LCH Clearnet Group Limited ang Scottish Widows plc

in accordance with the Articles David Pntchard will stand for reappomniment at each annuat general meeting

Jahn Botts

independent director appointed to the Board in Apnl 2010 Currently a senior adviser to Allen & Company
Advisors Limited, a subsiciary of the New York based investment banking company He 1s also chairman of
UBM PLC and Glyndebourne Arts Trust and a non executive cirector of Euromoney Institubional investor
PILGC and the Tate Foundation Previcusly held worldwide postions within Citv including chief executive
officer of Citr's Investment banking dvision in Ewope

In accordance with the Articles John Botts will stand for reappomntment at each annual general meeting

Faisal Al-Hamadi

Director of the Asset Management Group of Qatar Investment Authonty, First Finance Company, Epicure
Berln Propenty Company Limited and Al-Hosn Investment Company Apponted to the Board n January 2010
by Qatar Holding

Khalifa Al-Kuwan

Deputy chief operaling officer of Qalar Investment Holdings meimiber of Al-Hosn Investment Company,
Oman Investiment Company and Qatar Exchange Appainted to the Board nJanuary 2010 by Qatar Holding

Sheikh Mohammed Bin Hamad
Bin Jassim Al-Thani

Charman of Barwa Bank since August 2010, board member of Gult investment Group, Qatar Securtties
Group and First Finance Company Appointed to the Board in January 2010 by Qatar Holding

Peter Harned

Managing director and head of European Asset Management and Capital Markets for Morgan Stanley Real
Estate Apponted to the Board in June 2008 by the Morgan Stanley sharcholdel gioup

Jonathan Lane

Consultant and senior acviser to Morgan Stanley and chairman of EMEA Real Estate investment Banking
at Morgan Stanley Also independent non executive director of Grosvenor Liverpooi Limited member of the
Adwisory Board of Resolution Property Advisors member of the British Property Federation where he 1s on
the Policy Committee, non executive board member of the UK Government’'s Property Advisory Panel
member of the Bank of England’s Commergial Property Forum, the investment Property Forum and the
Urban Land Institute, and member of the Advisory Board of Oxford University’s Oxford Programme for the
Future of Cies Appointed to the Board in August 2008 by the Morgan Stanley shareholder group

Bam Levinson

Adviser to the Glick entities and managing director of Levinson Capital Management LLC where he
oversees investments for a prvate equity fund Serves as a member of the board of Coleman Cable Inc
Appomted 1o the Board in Apnl 2004 by the Glick Shareholders

Alexander Midgen

Managing drector of the investment banking division of Rothschild and global co head of Rothschild’s real
estate advisory business Appointed to the Board in May 2004 by the Glick Shareholders

Bnan Nites

Managing director and head of European Investing for Morgan Stanley Real Estate Appomted to the Board
In September 2007 by the Moigan Stanley shareholder group

David P O'Connor

Co founder and senior managing partner of High Rise Capital Management L P, a New York based real
estate securities hedge fund He 1s also a director of Regency Centers inc, a member of the board of
Truslees al Boston College and currently serves on several investment cormmitiees Appaointed to the Board
on 28 March 2012 by the Glick Shareholders

Membership of board committees

Audit Cormmittes

| Announcement Committee l Executive Committes

John Botts (Chairman)
Peter Harned
Alex Midgen

David Pritchard {Charmnan)
Alex Midgen
Brian Niles

David Pritchard {Chairman)
Jonathan Lane

Alex Midgen

Brian Mies
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Directors’ report

The drrectors present ther report with the
audited consoldated  financial  statements
for 2012

Principal activity and businass review

The pnnoipal actvity of the Company 15 the
management of its investment i its man
subsidiary, Canary Wharf Group plc, which
15 the holdng company for the Gioup
which  specialses in ntegrated  operty
development investment and management
focusing primarly on the Estate and in more
recent years broadening elsewhere in Central
London with joint venture projgects such as
the recievelopment of the Shell Centre and
20 Fenchurch Streat

A detaled review of the business of the
Group dunng the year, and of its postion
at 31 December 2012 can be found in the
Charmans Operational Review and the
Business Review, which are 1o be treated
as being part of this Diectors’ Report The
pnncipal rsks and uncertanties identified for
the Group are summansed in the Business
Review — Principal nsks and uncertainbes together
with measwes of the Group's performance by
ieference to appropriate  key performance
incicators  (Business  Poview —  Conscldated
balance sheet and key performance indicators)

Events after the balance sheet date

Detalls of events after the balance sheet date
are shown In Note 30

Resuits and valuations

The results for the year are set cut n the
Consolidated Income Statement Changes in the
market value of land and buldings dunng 2012
are reviewed In the Business Review — Valuations

Dwidends and reserves

New Articles were adopted dunng the year
which resulted in the terms of the Preference
Shares being amended The coupon now
payable on the Preference Shares has changed
from a fixed rate of 100% pa (with potential
ncieases rom 2014) to 3 month UBOR plus
775% pa The Preference Dwdend accrues
from day to day commencng on the date of
ssue of that share and shall be pad in cash
quarterty in amears on 1 January, Apnl July
ard October n each year Further detal on the
Preference Shares can be found in Note 24
A Preference Dividend of £5 7m was declared on
20 March 2013 for payment an 1 Aprl 2013

The Articles now allow for the payment of
diwvidends on the Ordinary Shares without
the consent of the Prefetence Shareholders,
subject 10 the coupon payable on the
Preference Shares beng up 1o date
Songbird does not have a dwidend policy
and payment of a dvidend on the Ordinary
Shares would be dependent upon a number of
considerations ncluding receipt of cash from
Canary Wharf Group which also does not have
a dwidend policy

The profit of £118 8m {2011 — loss £68 1m)
attrbutable to the members of the Company
has been transferred to reserves No dividends
were declared dunng the vyear ended
31 December 2012 other than the dmdonds
in respect of the Preference Shares

Going concern

The Group’s business actwviies together
with the factors likely 1o affect ns future
development, performance and postion are
set out elsewhere in the Business Revew
The finances of the Group its iquidity position

and borowing faclites are described In
the Busness Review - Borowings and the
nsks faced by the Group are set cut n the
Business Review - Prncipal nsks and
uncertantes and Note 21

The Group has considerable  financzl
resources and at 31 December 2012 the
Group had cash balances totafing £749 7m of
which £618 7m was unsecured In addiion
Canary Whart Group enjoys the benefit of
leases with a weighted average unexpired lease
term of 14 2 years assurming the exercise of all
break optons, and the average matunty of
the Groups debl at 31 December 2012 was
130 years At 31 December 2012 the
occupancy level was 95 5% Accordingly, the
directors believe that the Group 1s well placed to
manags s business nisks successfully desprte
the continung uncertain economic cimata

Having made the requsie enquires the
directors have a reasonahle expectation that the
Company and the Group will have adequate
resources ¢ continue therr operations for the
foreseeable future and therefore continue to
adopt the going concern basis In prepanng the
report and financial staterments

Substantial shareholdings

At the date of this report, 78 86% of the 1ssued
QOrdinary Share caprtal of the Company was
held by the Significant Snareholders, with the
remairing 21 14% held publicly All of the
Ordinary Shares are listed on AlM

At 31 December 2012, the Company
had been notfied of the iollowing disclosatle
nterests of 30% or more n the Ordinary
Shares of the Company

Issued

No of Capital

shares %

Qatar Holding® 211,745,156 28 60
Glick Shareholders™ 191,981,865 2593
Land Breeze™ 116,988,095 15 80
MS Shareholders™ 63,155 788 853
Third Avenue Management LLC 23,648 133 318

Note
i) Also holds 150 Om Preforence Shares

i} Investmeant vehicles and trusts connacted with Simen Glick and his family
i A wholly owned subsidiary of GIC Also holds 125 Om Preference Shares
v Compnisas vanous funds rmanaged by Morgan Stanley Real Estate Investing




Dwectors

The following diractors served on the Board
throughout the year except as noted

David Pritchard

John Botts

Faisal Al-Harmadh

Khalfa Al-Kuwar

Shekh Mohamymed Bin Hamad Bin Jassim Al-Thani
Peter Harned

Jonathan Lane

Sam Levinson

Alex Midgen

Brian Niles

David P O'Connar - Appointed 29 March 2012

In acceordance with the Articles Dawid Prichard
and John Botts as indepencent directors
of the Company wili retire at the forthcoming
annual  general meetng  and  offer
themselves for reapportment  Biographical
detais for all the drectors are provided
in Directors Report

Directors’ interests

Sam Levingon has direct and indirect relationships
with the Glick Shareholders and, accordingly, has
an interest in 191,981 865 Crdinary Shares of
the Company beaing the Ordinary Shares held by
the Glick Sharehoclders

David P Q Connor has a direct interest n
550 000 Ordinary Shares Alex Midgen has
a direct nterest in 111 000 Ordinary Shares
None of the remaring drectors or therr
families, had a beneficial nterest in the shares
of the Company or any of ts subsidiary
companies during the year All of the directors
are non executive directors and the Company
has not, therefore, adopled any share plan for
1he benefit of its diectors

Except as stated n Note 29 of the Notes to the
consoliclated finanial stalements, no olher
contract subsisted dunng the year in relation to
the business of the Company in which any
director was materally interested

Directors’ responsibilities

The drrectors are responsible for prepanng the
annual 1eport and the financial statements n
accordance with applicable law and regulations

Company law requires the directors to prepare
financial statements for each financial year The
directors are requrred by the AIM rules to
prepare the Group financial staterments uncier
IFRS as adopted by the Eurcpean Union and

have elected to prepare the Company inancial
statements under UK GAAP The financial
statements are also required by law to be
pioperly prepared 0 accordance with the Act

International Accounting Standard 1 requires
that IFRS financial statements present farly tol
each financial year the Group's financial
position, financial perforrance and cash flows
This requires the farhful representation of the
effects of transactons ¢ther events and
conditions i accordance with the definitions
and recognition cntena for assets, habilities,
ncome and expenses set out in the
International Accounting Standarcds Board's
Framework for the preparation and presentation
of finarcwl statements  In wirtuglly  all
crcumstances, a far presentation wil be
achieved by complance with all applicable
IFRSs Directors are, however also required to

» properly select and apply accounting policies,

* present nformation Ncuding accounting polces,
N a manner thal provdes rievant  mlable
comparable and understandable information

provide  addiwonal  disclosures  when
compliance with the specific, requirements in
the IFRSs are insufficient to enable users to
understand the 'mpact of particutar
transactions, other events and conditions
on the entity s financial postion and fnancial
performancs, and

» make an assessment of the Company s and the
Group s ability to continug as a gong concem

The drectors have elected to prepare the
Company financial staternents in accordance with
UK GAAP and applcable law The Compary
financial statements are reguired by law to gve
a true and farr view of the state of affars of the
Company In prepanng these financial statements,
the directors are required to

¢ select sutable accounting policies and then
apply them consistently,

make judgements and estmates that are
reasonable and prudent

state whether applicable UK Accountng
Standards have been followed, subject
to any mateial departures disclosed and
explained in the financial statements and

prepare the financial statements on the
going concern basis unless it 1Is napproprate
to presume that the Company will continue
N business

The directors are respansible for keeping
proper accounting records that disclose with
leasonable accuracy at any time the financial
pasition of the Group and to enabis them to
cnsure that the Company financial statermenis
comply with the Act The directors are also
responsible for safeguarding the assets of the
Company and hence for taking reasonable
steps for the prevention and detection of fraud
and other irregulanties

The dreciors are rasponsible for  the
mantenance and integnty of the ¢orporate and
financial  information  Included on the
Company's website Legsslation n the United
Kingdom goverming  the preparation  and
dissermination of fmancial statements may
differ from legislation in other junsdictions

Drectors' ndemmuty and insurance

The Company provides an indemmnity to ai
directars of the Company and s associated
companies {as defined n Section 256(L) of the
Act), to the extent permitted by law, in respect
of labilities mcurted as a 1esult of ther office
The indemnity was in force dunng the year
ended 31 December 2012 and at the time of
the approval of this Directors Repert The
Group also has n place hability insurance
covering the clirectors and officers of the
Company and 1ts subsichary undertakings
Nether the indemnity nor the nsurance provide
cover In the event that the director 1s proved to
have acted dshonestly or fraudulently

Corporate governance

Due to the concentrated sharsholder base and
shareholder representation on the Board 1t 1s
nat prachica for the Company 1o comply with all
of the prrciples of the Quoted Companes
Allance comorate governance guidelnes for
AlM Companies However ihe drectors are
mindful of thar duties and responsibiities to al
shareholders The Company produces annual
and intenm reports which are sent {0 each
sharcholder providing details on the financial
and operating performance of the Group
Senior members of the Group alsc met with
analysts and shareholders with whom the
Board recognises the mpartance of mantaining
clear communication The directors are aware
of ther statutory duties under the Act and,
in particular the cote duty to act in good faith
and In a way most ikely o promote the success
ol the Company for the beneft of its members
as a whole
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Directors’ report continued

Corporate governance continued

The following
governance appv

pnneiples  of  corporate

* The Board includes 2 independent directors
who must retire and stand for reappointment
at each annual general meeting

« The Board also includes 9 non executive
directors wha are drawn from the sovereign
wealth funds and leading investment banks
which are shareholgers in the Company

» The Board meets at ieast 4 times a year and
has formally adopled a schedule of powers
which are reserved to the Board Details of
these powers are included in articles 110
and 111 of the Arhicles and can be found on
the Company website,

¢ The Board has ful and tmely access
to all relevant information to enable #
to discharge its duties effectively

» Committees of the Board, which have
adopted formalsed terms of reference have
been establishedl to deal with the day to day
matiers of the Board and speufic areas of
responsibiity All of the committees’ terms of
reference are subject to regular review and
are avalable on the Company's website

* A formal process has been adopted by
the Board to manage directors conflicts
of intercst, detals of which are on the
Company’s website,

independent advisers have been appointed
by the Company

» Theterms and conditions of appointment of
the directors are avalable for nspection at
the Companys registered office and at the
annual general meeting,

All directors have direct access to the advice
and services of the company secretary and
are able to seek independent professional
advice at the expense of the Company i
required in connecticn with ther duties,

Formal agreements are In place bstween
the Company Significant Sharehclders
{as appropnaie) and therr associates and
Canary Wharf Group in relation to the
dissernination of nformation provision of
sarvices and consultancy arrangements

* The Board retans responsibiity for the
mantenance of a sound system of internal
cantrol for the Company and its wholly
owned subsidiares and for reviewing its
effectveness  The Group's system of
internal controt 1s continuously reviewad by

management anc? all nshs klentified by this
process are reviewed and amended as
appropnate to reflect the cunent market
conditions and

A share dealing code has been adopted
by the Company and 1s avalable on the
Company's website

Committees

Announcement Audit  and  Executive
Committees have been estabished with
formally delegated duties and responsibilities
Formal terms of reference for all 3 committees
have bsen adeopied by the Board and are
avalable on the Company website
Membership of each committes 15 detaled in
Shareholder information

The Announcement Committee, which has
2 membeig in addition to the chanman mests
as required to consider information that should
or may be required io be disseminated to
the market having regard to the Company's
and the dirsctars’ continuing  obligations
The Anncuncement Commitiee 15 chareq
by David Pritchard

The Audit Committee meets at least 4 times a
year and has at least 2 mambers 0 addiion (o
the charman who are not members of the
Canary Wharf Group Audit Committee The
Audit Committee 1s charred by John Botts The
auditor 18 invited 10 Audit Committee meetings
on a regular basis Dunng the year the
committee reviewed the interim and annual
financial statements, the full and half year
valuations and external valuations process, the
Groups system of internal control and nsk
managemant and also considered the
performance of the external auditor and the
scope of audt findings Risk assessiment and
steps taken to mitgate nsk are reported
quarterly to the committes for oversight and
discussion  Each indwidual nsk 18 evaluated
and a senwor executve within the Group IS
assigned responsibility for every nsk lentified
by lhe risk assessment process

The Executive Comimitlee comprises Significant
Sharehalder appointed  dirsctors  and  the
Chairman  Whilst 1t formally has powers to
oversea the implementation of decisions of the
Board this committee did not meet dunng
2012 as all matters delegated to it have heen
dealt with by the Board

Conflicts of interest

A formal process to manayge directors’ conficts
of nterest has been adopted by the Board and
& avalable on the Company website The
prescnbed process provides a framework

within  which the directors who are not
conflicted can manage potential confict
situations to protect the mterests of the
Company This process 1s onerating effectively
and an annual review 15 conducted of the
conflicts disclosed dunng  the precedmny
12 months in order to dentiy any necessary
changes reguired to the process

Policies

Corporate responsiinkity

Due to the nature of the Company's business
being the management of its investment n
Canary Wharf Group and its management
structure, t 15 not appropnate for the Company
to adopt sustanability, environmental and social
policies in ks own right However the directors
are conscious of sustanabilty emvironmental
and social 1ssues and adhere as apploplate
to  Canary Wharl Groups sustainabiity
environmental and social pelicies in this area

Canary Wharf Group 18 committed to apphing
sustainabiity best practice wherever practical
In the design construction and management
of the Canary Wharf Estate and to properties
situated elsewhere, for the benefit of the
grvironment,  tenants,  employess the
community and stakeholders The Group
publishes annually a separate Sustainabiity
Report which provides details of performance
against a range of specified targets and
objectves with third party venfication  This
report  together with addtional supporting
nformation and Group publications can be
downloaded from the Canary Whart Group
website www canarywharf com A summary
of the Canary Wharf Group sustainabity
polices s set out below

Canary Wharf Group has mantaned
ISO 14001 accreditation since early 2004 with
environmental management beng an inherent
part of construction since 2002 During 2012
no member of the Group Incurred any fines or
non mongtary sanctions for non compliance
with any regulation or legislation related to
sustainabiity issues Canary Wharf Group 1S
a member of the UK Green Bulding Council
and the Better Bulding Partnership  Canary
Wharf Group targets the reduction of energy
water and resource use and the reuse and
recychng of waste where possible dunng the
design  construction  and  management
of properhes The mmimisation ot disruption
and dstubance to the environment and
local community I1s also targeted durnng the
construction and management of buldings
Canary Wharf Group 18 also commitied to




preventing and monitonng pollution and to
reducing any emissions which may have an
acvarse impact on the anvironment and/or
local community

Canary Wharf Group endeavours to rase
awareness and promote effective managesment
of sustanabilty enwvironmental and social
issues with staff, designers, suppliers and
contractors and works with suppliers and
contractors 10 establish effective environmental
supply chain management and to promote the
procurement of sustanable products and
materials Ganary Wharf Group works with
other parties 10 1dentify key environmental and
social 1ssues and lo share solutions and best
practice In managing environmental Impact

Employment

As neither the Company nor its wholly owned
subsidianes have employees, an employment
policy has not been adopted by the Company
However Canary Wharf Group has adopted a
detaited employment policy, detais of which
can be found in the report and financial
statements of Canary Wharf Group

Treasury

Details of the Group s treasury cbjectives and
financial nshs, together with the far value of the
Group's debt and the position under its lending
covanants can be found in Note 21 to the
consoliclated financial staternents

Payment of suppliers

It 15 the Group's palicy to settls the terms of
payment with 1ts suppliers when agreeing the
terms of each transaction to ensure that
supplers are made aware of, and then to abide
by the 1erms of payment

Further disclosure on consalidated trade and
other pavables can be found in Note 17 to the
consolidated financial statements and on the
Company anly trade creditors in Note (f} to the
Company financial statements

Anti bnbery and corruption

The Group 15 committed to the prevention of
bribery and corruption Canary Wharf Group
has adopted a detaled ant bnbery and
corruption palicy, details of which can be found
in the report and financial statements of Canary
Wharf Group This policy has been adopted by
the Board

Donations

No poltical donations or expenditure (as
defined by the Act) or chantable donations
were made by the Company dunng 2012

Canary Wharf Group made charitable
donations of £473363 in 2012 (2011 -
€448 896), prnmanly i support of local
communiy initiatves

Political donations (as defined by the Act and
which include donations in kind} made by
Canary Wharf Group during 2012 compnsed
£22 100 io the Labour Party £15 350 to the
Conservative Party and £18,000 to the Liberal
Demacral Party (2011 — £18 557 to the Labour
Party £57,367 to the Conservative Party and
£13,958 to the Uuberal Democrat Party)
Canary Wharf Group did not mcur any politcal
expenchiture (as defined by the Act) in either
2012 or 2011

Auditor and disclosure of Information
to the audtor

A resolution to reappoint Delotte LLP as the
Companys audior will be proposed at the
annual general meeting

Sc far as the diectors are aware there 1s no
relevant audit information of which the auditor
15 unaware Each drector has taken all
appropnate steps to make themselves aware
of any relevant aucdit information and to establish
that the auditor 15 aware of that nformation

This confirmation 15 gven and should e
nterpreted in accordance with the provisions
of 5418(2) of the Act

Annual general meeting

The annual general meeting will be held at 2 O0pm
on Wednesday 22 May 2013 at 10 Upper
Bank Sireet Canary Wharl, London E14 5JJ

By order of the Board

John Garwood
Secretary

Songbird Estates plc
Hegistered number 5043352
21 March 2013
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Independent auditor’s report
to the members of Songbird Estates plc

We have audited the Group financial staternents of Songlnd Estates ple for the year ended 31 December 2012 which compnse the Consolidated
income statement, the Consclidated statement of comprehensive inceme, the Consohdated statement of changes 1n equity the Consolidated
halance sheet, the Consoldated cash flow staternent and the related Notes 110 30 The financial reporting framework that has been applied i then
preparation 1s appicable law and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adonted by the Europesan Union

Thus report 1s made solely to the Company's mambers, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Comparnigs Act 2008 Qur audit
work has been undertaken s0 that we might slate to the Company s members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor'’s report
and for no other purpase To the fullest extent permitted by law we do not accept or assume responsibiity to anyone other than the Company and
the Company’'s members as a body for our audit work for thes report, or for the opinions we have formed

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditor

As explained more fully in the Directors’ Responsioilties Statement included within the Directors’ Report, the directors are responsibie for the
preparaton of the Croup financial statornents and for being satisfied that thoy give & true and taar view Our responsibility 1s to audit and expross an
apinien on the Group financizl statements in accarclance with applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and leland) Those
standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board s (APB's} Ethical Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves oblaining ewvidence aboud the amounts and disclosures in the financial statemens sufficient to give reasonahle assurance that the
financial statements are fiee from matenal risstatement whether caused by fraud or error This iIncludes an assessment of whether the accounting
policies are appropnate 1o the Group's circumstances and have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed, the reasonablenass of
significant accounting estimates made by the diectars and the overall presentation of the financial stalements In addiion we read all the financial
and non financial infermation i the Annual Report to wentify matenal nconsistencies with the audited financial statements  If we become aware
of any apparent matenal misstatements or nconsistencies, we consider the implhications for our report

Opmion on financial statements

In our opinion the Group financial statements

= give a tiue and far view of the state of 1the Group s affans as at 31 December 2012 and of its profit for the year then ended
* have been property prepared In accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Unien, and

* have been prepared in accordance with the requiremeants of the Companes Act 2006

Opirion on other matter prescnbed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinien the information given in the Drectors Report for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared 15 consistent
with the Group financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report m respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to you i, In our opirsan
» cerain disclosures of directors remuneration specified by law are not made or

+ we have not recerved all the information and explanations we require for our audrt

Other matter

We have reported separately on the parent company financial statements of Songbrird Estates plc for the year encled 31 Decemnber 2012

Mark Beddy (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of Deloitte LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditor
London, UK

21 March 2013




Consolidated income statement
for the year ended 31 December 2012

2012 2011
Capital Capital
Underying*  and other Total Underlyng and othar Totar
Note £m £m £m £m £m £m
Gross developrnent, rental and related ncome 5 3616 - 3616 352 3 - 352 3
Cost of sales {103 2) — {103 2) {108 5) - (108 5)
Net development, rental and related mcome 5 2584 - 258 4 2438 — 2438
Share of asscciates and joint ventures afier tax 12 - 36 36 03 76 73
Administrative expenses (38 6) - {38 6) 43 6) - {43 6)
Other income 23 - 23 75 - 75
Net revaluation movements - 2157 2157 - 837 637
Operating profit 3 2221 2193 441.4 207 4 713 2787
Net financing costs
- nvastrment revenues ' 7 75 - 7.5 79 - 79
— financing costs 7 (206 3) {41 1) {247 4} {2107} (288 7) (499 4)
(198 8} {411} {239 9} {202 8} (288 7) (491 o}
Profit/(loss) for the year before tax 233 1782 2015 46 {217 4} (212 8)
Tax 8 (18 0} 1287
Profit/(loss) for the year after tax 4 1835 {84 1)
Attnbutable to
Equity holders of the Company 1188 {68 1)
Non controfing interest 647 (18 0)
183 5 (84 1)
Earnings/(losses) per share
— basic and diuted 4 159p 9 0p

As defined in Notes vy and 4
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Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
for the year ended 31 December 2012

2012 2011

£m tm

Profit/fioss) after 1ax 1835 84 1)

Transfened from equity in respect of cash flow hedges 62 92

Tax on iems transilerred from equity (ncluding change In tax rate} {39) 49

23 43

Total comprehensive income/{loss} for the year 1858 {79 8)
Attributable to

Equity holders of the Company 1204 65 1}

Non controlling interest 654 (14 7)

1858 {79 8)




Consolidated statement of changes in equity
for the year ended 31 December 2012

Capita' Cancelled Total Non
Sharg  rodempbon Treasury share Hedging other controling  Retanad Share
premiurm reserve shares reserve feserve  reserves Interests sarnings capiial Total
£m £m m £m £m £m £m £€m £m £m

1 January 2011 11951 - (109) 595 8687 11770 6420 {141 9) 765 1,753 6
Loss for the year after tax - — — - - - - 84 1) - (84 1)
Net expense recognised - - - - - - — (84 1) - 84 1)
Transferred to non controlling siterests — - — — (13) {13) (147 160 - -
Transferred to ncome
- cash flow hedyes - - - - g2 92 - — — 9.2
Tax on transfers - — — - 49 49 - — - 49
Total comprehensive Income
and expense for the year - — - — 30 30 {14 7) {68 1) - {79.8)
Acquisttion of Treasury Shares — - (7 3 — — {7 3} - - — {7 3)
Acquisthon of Canary Wharf
Group shares - - - — - - 2 3) - — @23
Reserve movements in respect
of Treasury Shaies - — 23 - — 23 - 07 - 30
Dmvdends paid by
subsidiary undertaking — - - - - - (138) - - {13 8}
31 December 2011 1,195 % - {15 9) 595 837 1,1750 6112 {2093) 765 1,6534
Profit for the year afier tax - — - - - - — 18356 - 1835
Net income recognised - - - - - - - 1835 — 1835
Transterred to non conimolling interests — - — - @7 07 654 627 — -
Transtarred to mcome
- cash flow hedges - — - - 62 62 - - - 62
Tax on transfers - - - - (39 (39) - — —_ (39)
Tota! comprehensive Income
arkl expense for the year - — - - 18 16 654 118 8 - 1858
Shares cancelled on acquisition - 25 — - — 25 - (303 {2 5} {30 3)
Acquisition of Treasury Shares - - 03 - - (03} - - - 03
Reserve movements 1n respect
of Treasury Shares - - 06 - - 06 - 04 - 10
Diadends paid by
suhsichary undertaking - - - - — - (352) —_ - {35 2)
31 December 2012 1,195 1 25 {15 6} 595 621 1,1794 6414 {120 4) 740 11,7744

Descrnption of the nature and purpose of each reserve

The capital redemption reserve compnses the nominal value of 24 509,820 Ordinary Shares cancelled in 2012 urkder the Share Buyback

The Treasury Shares reserve represents the cost of Ordinary Shares held in Trust Detals of the movements on the Treasury Shares reserve are disclosed

N Note 26

The cancelled share reserve compnses the nominal value of 601,068 076 deferred shares cancelled in 2009

The hedging reserve compnses the amounts deferred in equity under previously sifective hedges which are recogrised nthe Consolidated Income Statement
" the same period Inwhich the hedged tem affects net profit or less

Retained earnings includes, inter ala revaluation sumluses N respect of the Group's properties that are recognised in the Consolidated Income Statement
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Consolidated balance sheet
for the year ended 31 December 2012

2012 201,
Nate £m £rm
Assets
Non current assets
Invesiment propesties 11 4,676 1 45097
Properties under constructon 11 1358 -
Development properties 11 4700 2918
Plant and equpment i1 06 05
5,282 5 48020
Other non current assets
lnvastments 12 746 1125
Tenant incentives and other non current assets 14 188 1 1928
Deferred tax 8 - 14 3
5,545 2 51213
Current assets
Trade and other recevables 13 a5 1 467
Monetary deposds 15 23 39
Cash and cash equivalenls 18 7497 996 1
7971 10467
Total assets 6,342 3 6,168 0
Liabilities
Current habiihes
Current portion of fong term borrowings 18 {114 3) 936)
Cosporation tax \7 {48 0} (52 9)
Trade and other paydbles 17 {237 0) (236 1)
(399 3) (382 6)
Nan cusrent liabihties
Borrowings 1% (3,5547) (35739
Dernvative financial instruments 20 (525 3) {547 1)
Other nen current habiities 22 {65 9) -
Deferred 1ax liabiities 8 (15 1} -
Provisions 23 (7 6) 93
(4,168 6) (4,132 0)
Total habihties (4,567 9) (2,514 6)
Net assets 1,7744 16534 :
Equity
Share capital 24 740 765 |
Other reserves 1,179 4 11750 l
Retamed earnings (120 4) {208 3) i
Total equity attributable to members of the Company 1,133 0 10422 I
Non gontroling Interests 6414 6112 ,
17744 16534 '

Total equity

Approved by the Board and authonsed for issua on 21 March 2013 and signed on its behalf by

)&awi N, CULD ik

Dawvid Pntchard
Charman




Consolidated cash flow statement
for the year ended 31 December 2012
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2012 2011
Note im £m
Net cash flows from operating activities 27 242 4 2540
Interest pad (232 3) (245 2)
Imerest recaived 71 73
Imerest element of inance lease rentals - 02
Breakage costs {291) - n
Financing expenses on new loans -_ 49 g
Expenses on amendmenis to Praference Shares {72 — §~
Net cash {outflow)/inflow from operating activities (19 1) 110 %
2
Cash flows from investing activities 5
Acguisition of property interests {20 9) —
Developrment expenditure {75 1) (227
Purchase of property, plant and equiprment {02) -
Investment n and net loans to associates (22 4) (60 9
Acquistion of shares in Canary Wharf Group pic - {2 3)
Net cash outflow from investing activities (118 6) 85 9)
Cash flows from financing activities
Dividends paid to non controliing interests (35 2) {13 8)
Redemption of secuntised debt {57 5) (57 5)
Repayment cf secured loan 89 8 5)
Repayment of Wood Whart loan notas 83 —
Drawdown of secured loan - 923
Payment of Wood Wharl deferred consideration (10} -
Share Buyback (30 3} —
Wood Whart loan notes 326 -
Acquisition of own shares 01} 73
Repaymeant of finance lease obligation — {42 4)
Net cash outflow from financing activihies {108 7} {37 2)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents {246 4} {112 1)
Cash and cash equivalents at start of year 996 1 1,108 2
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 18 7497 996 1




28

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2012

1 Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies

The financial Information preserted N this report has been prepaed In accordance with [FRS and IFRIC interpretations as aciopted by the
EU and therefcre complies with the AlM ules

The following new and revised accounting standards and interpretations have been adopted by the Group n 2012 Ther adoption has not had any
significant impact on the amounts reported in these financial statements but may impact the accountng for fulure transactions and arrangements

s Amendments to IFRS 7 Financial Instruments  Disclosures ~ (October 2010) Disclosures - Transfers of Financial Assets and
= Amendments to IAS 12, Income Taxes - {December 2010} Deferred Tax Racovery of Underlying Assets

At the date of authonsation of these financial statements the following standards and interpretations which have not been applied in these financial
statements were 1IN 1ssue but not yet effective {and N some cases had not yet been adopted by the EU)

¢ |FRS 9 Financial Instruments

* |FRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements

* IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements

* |[FRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities,

= [FRS 13 Far Value Measurement

v |AS 18 (revised June 2011) Employes Benefils,

s |AS 27 {revised May 2011) Separate Financial Statements

= |AS 2B {revised May 2011} Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures
* IFRIC 20 Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a Surface Mine

= Annual Improvements (May 2012) to IFRSs (2009 — 2011 Cycle),

s Amendments to IFRS 1 Frst time adoption of IFRSs — (March 2012) Government Loans (December 2010) First tme Adoption of IFRSs
afier a penod of Severe Hypennflation and Removal of Fixed Dates for First time Adlopters

* Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements — (June 2011) Presentation of Iltems of Other Comprehensive Income,
* Amendments 1o IAS 32 and IFRS 7 Pinancial instruments  Disclosures - {Decermber 201 1) Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilies and

* Amendments 1o IFRS 10 Consclidated Financial Statements, IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entiies and 1AS 27 (revised May 2011)
Separate Financial Statements —{October 2012) Investment Entities

The directors are in the process of assessing the impact, f any, of adopting the above standards and interpretations

Beyond the information above, 115 not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the effect of these new and amended standards aside from
IFRS 11 which s not expected to have any impact on the presentation and disclosure of the Group s financial statements

The financial statements have boeen prepared on a going concern basis as stated in the Directors Report — Going concein

Accounting policies

These financial statements have been prepared unider the historical cost convention as madifiect by the revaluation of land and buldings anc certan
financal instruments A summary of the principal Group acsounting policies, which have been appled consistently in all matenal respec ts throughout
the year and for the comparative year 18 set out below

{a) Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Company and ts subsidianes for the periods reported For the
purpcses of prepanng these consohdated accounts, subsidianes are those entties where the Comparny has contrat Control exists when the
Company has the power ditectly or ndiectly 10 govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as i0 obtain benelits from its activities
The financial statements of subsidianes are Included in the consolidated financial statements from the date that control commences until the date
control ceases

Where there 15 a change in the Company s direct or indiect interest In a subsichary, which does not alter the classification of the entity as a
subsidiary, this 1s accounted for as an eguity fransaction When such a change occurs the carrying amounts of the controling and non controling
nterests are adjusted to reflect the changes in therr relative iInterests in the subsidary The difference between the amount paid {or receved) and the
book value of the non controlling interest eliminated {or recognised) 1s taken directly 1o retained earnings




1 Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies continued

{a) Basis of consohdation continued

Associated undertakings and joint ventures are acceunted for under the equity method whareby the Consolidated Balance Sheet incorporates the
Group's share of the net assets of the relevant entiies The Consolidated Income Statermnent incorporates the Group's share of associated and joint
venture undertakings profits or losses after tax Wheie the Gioup's shaie of the losses of an associated and jont venture undertaking exceedls the
histonc cost of the Group’s nvestment in that enbity the investment 1s written down to nil and a prowision 1s recogrised for the Group's legal or
constructive obligations at the Consolidated Balance Sheet data 1n 1espect of that entity An entrty 1s classdied as an associated undenaking when
the Group has significant mfluence over the cconomic actwity of an undertaking but docs not have control An entity 1s classified as a joint venture
where the contractual arrangement by which the Group undertook 1o join an economic activity provides joint control

Intra group balances and any unrealised gains and losses ansing from nira group transactions are eimingied In prepanng the consolidated
financial statements

(b) Acquisitions and business combinations

Where properies are acquired! through corporate acquisiions and there are no significant assets or hablities other than property and related debt,
the acquisition 1s treated as an asset acquisihion in all ather cases the acquisihion s accounted for as a business combination in accordance with
IFRS 3 in which case the assets and labilities of a subsidary joint venture or associated undeniaking are measuted at ther cstimated far value at the
date of acqusition The results of such business combinations are included from the effective date of acquistion 1o the effective date of disposal
The excess of acquisition costs over the Group’s interest in the far value of the identifizble assets and labilties of the new enuty at the date cof
acquisition 1s recognised as goodwill

{c} Investment properties and properties cccupted by Canary Wharf Group
Investment properties are those properties that are held either 10 earn rental ncome or for capital appreciation ¢r both

Property occupied by the Group 1s cained ai far value based on a professional valuation made as of each 1eporting date Where the vaiue of such
property 18 not matenal it 15 Included In Investment properties Additions cons:st of costs of a caprtal nature

Acquired investment properties arg measurad invitially at cost including related transaction costs After intial recognition at cost investment
properties are carned at therr far vatues baseci on a protessional valuatron madle as of each reporting date  Properties are treated as acquired at the
point when the Group assumes the significant risks and returns of ownership and as disposed when these are transferred to the buyer Additions
to Investment properties consist of costs of & capital nature

The difference between tha farr value of an nvestment property at tha reperting date and its carrying amount prior to remeasurement 15 Included in
the Consolidated Income Slalement as a valuation gain or loss When the Group begins to redevelop an extsting nvestment property for continued
future use as an investment property, the property remans an investment property and I1s accounted for as such

{d} Non current assets held for sale

Non current assets classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of the carrying amount and far value less costs 1o sell As investment
properties are exempt from the measurement critena of IFRS 5 any such assets which are classified as held for sale continue to be carmed
at far vatue

Non ¢urrent assets are classified as held for sale f therr carrying amount will be recovered through a sale transaction rather than thiough
contnuing use This condiion 15 regarded as met only when the sale 1s highly probable and the asset 1s available tor immediate sale in ts present
condiion Management must be committed to the sale which shoutd be expected to gualfy for recognibon as a completed sale within ona year
trom the date of classification

(e} Development properties and properties under construction for investment

Development properties are those properties held with the intention to develop for future use as an investment property When construction
commences on such development properties, they are reclasstiied at far value as a property under construction for investment Such properties
are recognised at far value at each reporting date Any gain ar loss on remeasurement 1s taken direct to the Consolidated Income Statement
On completion the property 1s transfened 1o investment properties

Finance costs associated with direct expenditure on properties under construction 1o be held as an investment property or undergoing major
refurbishment are capitalsed The interast capralised ts calculated using the Group's waighted average cost of borrowings after adjusting for
borrowings associated with specific developments Where botrowings are associated with speciiic developments the amount capilalised 1s
the gross Interest incurned on those borrowings less any Investnment Income ansing on ther termporary investment  Interest 1S capitalised as from
the commencement of the development work until the date of practcal completion The capitahsation of finance Costs 15 suspended if there are
prolonged penods when developmeant activity 1s interrupted

(f) Plant and equipment

Plant and equipment compnises computers fuiniture, fixtures and fitbngs and mprovements to Group offices These assets are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any recogivsed impairment, and are depiecialed on a straight ine basis over ther esbmated useful Iives of betwsen
3 and 4 years
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
for the year ended 31 December 2012

1 Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies continued

{g) Construchion contracts

Construction contracts consist of properties that are beng constructed in accordance with long term development contracts and for which the
detaled design specification of each huilding 1s agreed with the puichaser Where applicable the contracts are split into 3 component paris sale of
land completed construction works at the date of enterng into the contracts, and ongomng construction contracts

Revenue on the sale of land and completed construction works s 1ecognised at the point that the significant nsks and rewards of ownership
aie transfeired to the buyer

Revenue on construction contracts 1s recognised according 1o the stage reached in the contract by reference to the value of work campleted using
the percentage of completion method The percentage of completion 1s calculated by reference to costs incurred on the bullding compared with
the estimated total costs  The gioss amount due comprises costs Incurred plus recognised piofils less the sum of recognised losses and progress
bilings Where the sum of recognised losses and progress billings exceeds costs incuned plus 1ecognised profits, e amount s shown as
payments on account

When 1t s probable that total contract costs will exceed total contract revenue, the expected loss 1s recognised iImmediately as an expense

{h) Trade receivables
Trade recervables are recognised imtially at fair value A prowsion for impasrment 1s established where there 1s objective evidence that the Group wil
not be able 1o collect all ameunts due according to the onginal terms of the recevables concerned

(1) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances deposits held with barks and other short term highly iqud investrnents with original maturties
of 3 months or less, which are held for the purpose of meeting short term cash commitments

(1} Monetary deposits
Armounts held on depost which do not micet the critena to be classified as cash and cash equvalents aic classificd as monctary deposits
and accounted for at amortised cost

(k) Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables are stated at cost

{) Provisions

A provision 13 recogniged in the Consolidated Balance Sheet when the Group has a present obligation as a result of a past event and it 1s probable
that an cutflow of economic henefits will be required to setide the ebligation If the effect 15 matenal prowsiors are determined by discounting the
oxpected future cash flows at a pic tax rate that refiects current market assossments of the time value of mongy and, whore appiopnate the nsks
specific to the hability

(m) Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at far value less atinbutable transaction costs Subsequent to intal recognition  borrowings are siated at
amortised cost with any difference between the amount intially recognised and redemption value being recognised in the Gonsohdated Income
Statement over the penod of the barrowings using the sffective interest meathed

The effective interest methad 1s a method of calcllating the amortised cost of a linancial lablity and of allocabing interest expense over the relevant
penod The effectve interast 1ate 1s the 1ate that exactly discounts estimated future cash flows (ncluding all fees that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate transachon costs and other premiums or chscounts) through the expected Iife ot the financial kabibity

{n) Pension benefits
Contributions o defined contribution schemes are expensed as they fall due

{o) Share capital
The Ordinary Shares are classed as equity External costs directly atinbutable to the issue of new shares are shawn In equity as a deduction from
the proceeds

The terms of the Preference Shares require these shares to be treated as a hability and consequently they are ncluded in amounts payable in more
than one year The costs of Issuing the Preference Shaies have also been taken to berrowings and are beng amortised over the term ot the Preference
Shaes The finance cost of lhe Prelerence Shares 1s classified as a inancmg expense n the Conmsolidated Income Statermant

The consideration paid, ncluding any directly attnbutable ncremental costs by any Group entity to acqure Treasury Shares 1s deducted from
equity until the shares are cancelled reissued or disposed of Where Treasury Shares are sold or reissued, the net consideration recerved 1s Included
N eguty

(p) Share based payments

Ordinary Shares held by the Trust may be allocated to employees under the terms of share schemes or allocations adopted from time to time
by Canary Wharf Group The terms of an allocation may at the option of Canary Wharf Group, allow the cmployee o recewnve a cash settlement
in lew of ther share allocation I this event, the cash anounl recenvable by an employee 1 calculated by reference to the markel price of the
Ordinary Shares at or around that date




1 Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies continued

{p} Share based payments continued

Where the terms of an afiocation permi the employee to opt for a cash settlement, the allocation 1s accounted for as a cash setiled share based
payment Where the terms of the allocation allow but do not require Canary Wharf Group to offer a cash setflement option to the employees,
the allocation 1s accounted for as an equty settled share based payment

For cash settled share allocations a llability 1s recognised calculaled by reference to the market value of the shares at each balance shest date
The cost of equity settled share allocations 1s measured at the grant date and based on the market value of the Ordinary Shares at that date
The associated cost 1s charged o the same expense category as the employment cost of the relevant employee, spread on a straight bne basis
over the relevant vesung penod, based on Canary Wharf Group 8 estimate of shares that will eventually vest

(q) Revenue recognition
Revenue (s measured at the fair value of the consideration receved or recevable and 1s stated net of discounts and VAT

Revenue compnses rental income service charges and other recovenes from tenants of the Group s properties and income ansing on long term
contracts Service charges and other recovenes include directly recoverable expenditure together with any chargeable management fees and are
recognised as they fall dus

Revenue from construction contracts 1s recognised in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy on construction contracts

Rental mcome from nvestment property leased out under an operating lease 15 recognised in the Consolidated Income Statement on a
straight Ine basis over the term of the lease Lease incentives granted, including rent free penods are recognised as an integral part of the
net consideration for the use of the property and are therefore also recognised on the same straight Iine bass An adjustiment 1s made 1o ensure
that the carrying value of the elated property inclucing the acciued rent, amortised lease incentves and negotiation costs, doss not exceed
the extenal valuation

Contingent 1ents being those lease payments that are not fixed at the nception of a lease, for example turnover rents aie recorded as income
in the penods i which they are earmed

Where reventig i1s obtainea by the sale of assets 1t I1s recogrised when significant nsks and returns have been transferred to the buyer Inthe case
of the sale of properties, this 18 on completicn

(r} Expenses
Property and contract expenditure incurred prior 1o the exchange of a contract 1s expensed as incurred

Direct costs incurred in negotiating and amanging a new lease are amortised on a straight ine basis over the penod from the date of lease
commencement to the earligst termination date

(s} Imparment of tangible and intangible assets

The carrying amounts of the Group's non financial assets other than investrment, development and construction property (see () and (e) above)
are reviewed at each reporting date to determing whether there 15 any indication of mparment If any such indication exists, the assets
recoverable amount 1s estimated An imparment loss 15 recognised in the Consolidated Income Statement whenever the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset 1s the greater of its net seling prica and s value In use The value n use 1S determined as the net present value
of the future cash flows expected to be denved from the asset, discounted using a pre tax discount 1ate that teflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the nsks specific to the asset

An impairrment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estmates used to determine the recoverable amount of an asset An imparment
loss 15 reversed only 1o the extent that the assets carmpng amount after the reversal dees not exceed the amount which would have been
determined net of applicable depreciation, i no imparrment loss had bean recognised

(1) Denvatives
The Group uses Interest rate dervatives to help manage its nsk of changes in interest rates In accordance with its treasury policy the Group does
not hold or 1ssue dervatives for trading purposes

In order for a denvatve to qualfy for hedge accounting, the Group 1s required to document the relationship between the item beng hedged and the
hedging instrument The Group 15 also required to demonstrate an assessmeni of the relationship between the hedged item and the hedging
instrument which shows that the hedge will be effective on an ongoing basis The effectiveness testing 1s performed at each balance sheet date to
engure that the hedge remains highly effective

Changes in the fan value of dervative financial nstruments that are designated and effective as hedges of future cash flows are recognised ciectly
in the Staternent of Comprehensive Incorme with any ineffective portion recognised immediately in the Consobdated Income Statement lf the cash
flow hedge of a irm commitiment o1 forecasted transaction results in the recogniion of a non financial asset o+ a lability, then at the ime the asset
or habity 15 recognised the associated gains or losses on the denvative that had previously Deen recognised in equity are included in the itial
measurement of Lhe asset or lability For hedges that do not result in the recogniion of a non financial assel or alability amounts deferred n eqyuty
are recogrised N the Consolidated Income Statement n the same penod In which the hedged item affects net profit or loss
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
for the year ended 31 December 2012

1 Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies continued

(t) Derivatives continued
Changes in the farr value of denvative financial instriiments that do not qualify for hedge accounting are recognised in the Consolidated Income
Statement as they anse

Hedge accounting 1s discontinued when the hedging mstrument expires o 15 sold, terminated or exercised or no longer qualfies for hedge
accounting Af that tme any cumulative gam or loss on the hedging instrument recognised In equity s refainad » equity untd the forecasted
hansaction oeeurs If 2 hedged tiansaction is no longer expected to occur, the net cumulative gain or loss recognised 10 equity 1s transfened to net
profit or loss for the penod

Dervatives embedded in other financial Instruments or other host contracts are treated as separate denvatives when therr nsks and characteristics are
not closely related to those of host contracts and the host contracts are not camed at far value, with gans or losses reported in the Consoldated
Income Statement

(u) Tax
Current tax 1s provided at amounts expected to be paid or recovered using the tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted
at the balance sheet date

Deferred tax s provided i full using the balance sheet hability method on temporary diflerenices belween Lhe carying amounts of assets and habilies
for financial teperting purposes and the amounts used for tax purposes

A deferred tax asset 1s regarded as recoverable and therefore recognised only when, on the basis of all avalable evidence 1t can be regarded as more
likely than not that there will be sutable taxable profits from which the future seversal of the underying temporary differences can be deducted
The deferred tax effect of far value adiustments ansing fiom business combinations 1s incorparated i the Consoldated Balance Sheet

The deferred tax provision cained in respect of the investment property portiolic has been calculated on the basis that the carrying amount of such
properties s recoverable through sale

No provision 1s made for temporary differences i) ansing on the inihal recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable
profit and (i) relating to investments in subsidiates 10 the extent that the Group 1s able 1o contiol the 1eversal of the temporary differences and
1115 probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable future

Deferred tax 15 calculated at the tax rate that s expected to apply to the period when the asset 1s reahsed or the iability 1s settled basaed on tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date Deferred tax 1s ¢harged or credited in the Consolidated Income
Statement except where t relates to tems charged or credited directly to equity in which case the deferred tax 1s also dealt with in equity

(V) Leases
Leases are classified as inance leases whenever the terms of the lease transter substantiafly all the nsks and rewards of ownetship to the lessee
All other leases are classiied as operating leases

The Group as fassee

{} Pnance leases — are capitalised at the leasa's commencement at the lower of the farr vafue of the asset and the present value of the minimum
lease payments Each lease payment i1s allocated between the kability and finance charges The coiresponding rental oblgations net of costs
ncuired in establishing the finance lease cbligation, are included in bonowangs The finance charges are charged to the Consolidated income
Statement over the lease pencd so as to produce a constant penadlic rate of iInterast on the remarming balance of the habilty for each penod

{n} Operating leases - payments, Including prepayments, macde under cperating leases (net of any incentives receved from the lessor) are charged
to the Consoldated Income Statement on a straight kne basis over the period of the iease

The Group as lessor
All leases operated by the Group are tested to determine whether they qualfy as operating leases or finance leases No finance leases have
been identified as a result of these tests

QOperating leases - rental ncome from operating leases 1s recognised on a straight ine basis over the term of the relevant lease Any incentives given
to lessees are included in Other Non Current Assets and recognised on a straight ine basis over the lease term Inttial direct cosls incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are deferred and recogrused on a straight ne basis over the lease term

{w} Dividends
Dmadend distnbutions to the Companv s shareholders are recognised in the Group's financiat statements in the penod in which the diviclends
are paid or approved by the Company's shaieholders

{x} Segmental analysis
The Group s managed as a single entity n one geographical area with internal management reporting prepared on this hasis and as such has not
prepared a segmental analysis in accordance with IFRS 8




1 Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies continuad

(v} Underlying earnings

The directors are of ihe opinion that analysing piofit before tax between undertying earnings and capital and other itemns provides additional usetl
infarmation for members of the Company The term underying earnings 1s not a defined term under IFRS and may not theiefore be comparable
with similarty titied profit measurements reported by other companies The adjustiments made to 1eported 1asults are as foliows

{1} Net ravaluation movements
The revaluation movements on nvestiment piaperties are included in the Consolidated Income Statement but have been reclassified separately fiom
the underlying results 10 enable members to better appreciate the operaling performance

(1) JAS 39 and IAS 32 agjustments

The commercial effect of the Group's hedging arrangements 1S that substantially all of the Gicup’s financial habilites are at fixed rates However,
where the hedges are deemed Ineffective the Consolidated income Statement reflects the effects of movements in the fair values of these hedging
nstrumenis As this introduices volatility in the Consolidated Income Statement which will not be 1eflected 1n the cash flows of the Group, the IAS
39 adjustments have heen reclassificd separately from the underiying results  The finance costs associated with the Preferonce Shares have also
peen reclassfied sepaately from underlying eaimings 1eflecting the fact that this expense relates to share captal that has been classified as debt
In gccordance with 1AS 32

{t) Refinancing costs and gams
These tems have been reclassified from underlying earmings due to ther size and nflequent occunence

2 Cntical accounting judgements and key sources of estmation uncertainty

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requres the use of estimates and assumphons that
affect the 1eported amounts of assets and lafbilities at the date of the financial statements and the reperted amounts of revenue and expenses
dunng the reporting penicd  Although these estimates are based on management s best knowledge of the amount gvent or actions actual results
ulimatety may differ from those estimates

{1} Valuation of investment and development properties

The Group uses the valuations performed by its Independent valuers as the fair value of s properties The valuations are based upon assumpiions
ncluding future rental Income, anticipated void costs, the appropuate discount rate or yield and, in the case of developiment properties the estimated
costs to compietion The valuers also make reference to market evidence of transaction prices for similar properties

(1) Financial instruments
The far values of financial instiuments are determined by 1cfeience to the prces avalable on the markets on which they asc traded or by reference
to valuations provicled by counter party financizd nstitutrons

{m) Construction contracts

IFRIC 15 requires the Group’s pre sale property contracts to be spiit into 3 component parts sale of land completed construction works at the date
of entening Into the contracts, and ongoing construction contracts The proceeds recevable under such contiacts are required to be aliocated to
each of these components The aliocation of 1evenue to completed construction works and ongaing construction contiacts 1s calculated by reference
to the market rates applicable for such mdependently performed construction work The remaming revenue component 1s allocated to the sale
of land

Construction contracts are carned at the lower ¢f cost and net realisable valug The latler 13 assessed by the Group having regard to sutable
external advice and knowledge of recent comparable transactions

Revenue on construction contracts 1s recognised using the percentage of completion method The directors have estimated the outcome
of each coniract on an indwidual hasis based on the proportion of costs incuned compared with the estimated total costs and reconsider
these estimates at each balance sheet date
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
for the year ended 31 December 2012

3 Operating profit

Qperating profit 1epresents the consolidated profit of the Group, including the Group s share of results of associates but before net financing costs
and tax

2012 2011
. £'000 £000
The operating profit 1s stated afier chaiging
- depreciation (Note 11} 88 472
— drectors’ emoluments (Note 10} 598 560
Audior's remuneration
2012 2m
£'000 £ 000
Audit of Company 61 58
Audit of subsidianes 513 482
Total audit 574 540
Audit related assurance services (iIntenm reviews) 97 79
Other assurance sarvices (service charge assurance work) 45 43
Audit and related assurance services 716 662
Tax comphance services 85 166
Tax advisory senvices 296 127
Services relating 1o taxation 39 263
Services refated to corporate finance transactions not covered above - 25
Other non audit services not covered above 36 6
Total other non audit services 36 51
Total non audt services 427 466
Total fees 1,143 10086
Occupational pension scheme audits 11 10

Audit fees
Of the audit fees ncurred in 2012, £56 000 related 1o the audit of the consolidated accounts of Canary Wharf Group (2013 ~ £53,500)

4 Performance measures

Basic earnings and losses per share

2012 2011
Earrungs/ Eamings/

flosses)  Per share flosses) Per share

£m ] £m p

Unclerlying profit for the year before tax 233 31 46 06
Camtal and other items 178.2 238 (217 4) (28 8)
Tax (180} (24) 1287 171
Profit/{loss} after tax 1835 245 {84 1) (11 1)
Less non controlling interest {64 7) {8 6) 160 213
Profit/{loss) after tax attnbulatde 1o imembers of the Company 1188 159 68 1) 90

Underlying earnings exclude movements on property revaluations movements in the far value of ineffecive hedging mstruments and other
dervatives nterest payable on the Preference Shares and tax

Earmings and losses per shate for 2012 has been calculated by reference to the profit attributable 10 equity sharehalders of £118 8m for 2012
{2011 —loss of £68 tim) and on the weighted average of 749 2m Ordinary Shares in issue for 2012 (2011 - 756 1m} The weighted average number
of Orclinary Shares excludes the shares held by the Trust

Warrants were 1ssued m 2010 for a total of 2,836,666,668 Ordinary Sharas with a strike price of 1 5p These Warrants exprred in October 2012
without being exercised




4 Performance measures continued

Adjusted net assets per share

31 December 30June 31 December
212 22 2011
£m 2m £m
Batance sheet net assets 1,774 4 1,729 2 1,853 4
Adustment for deferred tax 151 108 (14 3)
Mark 10 market of dervatives 5253 5402 5471
Add surplus ansing on construction conracts 70.1 67 8 581
23849 23487 2,244 3
Non controlling interest in the balance shest {841 4) 633 7) {611 2)
Non controling interest on adjustments above {187 0) (189 7) {181 0)
Adjusted net assets 1,556 5 1,625 3 14521
Adjusted NAV per share 210p 199p 190p

Adiusted NAY per share ncludes the valuation surplus on construction contracts of £70 1m at 31 Oecember 2012 (30 June 2012 - £67 8m,

31 December 2011 — £58 1m) and excludes fau value adjustments on dervatives and deferred tax

There were 740 4m Ordinary Shares i 1ssue at 31 December 2012 (30 June 2012 and 31 December 2011 — 764 9m}

The Share Buyback resulted in the acquisiton of 24 5m Ordinary Shares at an aggregate cost of £30 3m  Stated before the impact of the Share
Buyback adjusted net assets at 31 December 2012 would have been £1,586 8m and the number of shares in issue would have been 764 9m

resutting in an adjusted NAV per share of 207p

5 Revenue
2012 2011
£m £m
Rent recevable 2638 2513
Recognised incentives and committed rent Increases (4 4) {13)
2594 2500
Service charge income 794 752
Miscellaneous iIncome 169 216
Recewable on termmation of leases 03 cA1
Construchon contract revenue 56 54
Gross development, rental and related income 3616 3523
Service charge and other direct property expenses {96 1) (107 1)
Movement in accruals and provisions for leasehold commitrments {0 8} 19
Payments on termination of leases {09} 01}
Construction contract expenditure {5 6} 54
Net development, rental and related mecome 258 4 2438

Rent recevable included contingent rents of £1 6m (2011 - £1 6m)

In 2012, the Group had 2 major tenants contnbuting £75 2m and £42 7rm of Group revenue (2011 - 2 major customers contributing £81 6m

and £42 6m)

35

SJUBLUDLRIS [eIJUBIS



Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
for the year ended 31 December 2012

6 Net revaluation movements on property and investments

2012 20m
£m £m

Revaluation of
— Investment properties 1478 439
- properties under construction (15 1) -
- development properties B30 198
2157 B37

In accordance with [AS 40 {amended), the revaluation movement on development properties 1s recogrused in the Consolidated income Statement
At 31 Decernber 2032, a cunmwulatwe sevaluation surplus on development properties of 296 2m has been recognised (31 Decernber 2011 - £13 2m)

The revatuation surplus for development properties of £83 6m recogmised in 2012 compared with a surplus of £19 8m in 2011 This movement
compnised a surplus of £7 5m for properties where market value 1s Jess than histoncal cost (2011 - £7 3m) and a surplus of £75 5m on properties
whare market value exceeds histongal cost (2011 - £12 5m)

7 Net financing costs

2012 201
£m £m
Interest revenue
Deposits other ioans and securities 75 79
Interest expense
Notes and debenturas {139 5) {146 3)
Cther bank loans and overdrafis 677} (63 4)
Obligations under finance leases - 10
Obligations under long term property lease (54) -
{212 6) (2107)
Interast at 6 2% transtarred 1o proparty under construction 63 —
{206 3) (210 7)
Undailying net financing Losls {198 8) (202 8)
Other financing income/{costs)
Valuabion movements on {ar value of dervatives (73) (250 1)
Finance costs of non equity shares (Note 21) (27 6) (29 4)
Hedging reserve recycling {6 2) 92)
(41 1) (288 7)
Net financing expenses (239 9) (491 5)
Total financing meorme 75 79
Total financing expenses (247 4) (499 4
Net financing costs (239 9) (491 5)

Financing fees included N inteiest payable 1otalled £8 4m i 2012 (2011 - £7 1m}

The amount iransferred to Properties under construction s attnbutable 10 the cost of funds forming part of Canary Whart Group's general borrowings
which were deemed to be utised In financing the cost of building the properties under construction

In 2012 £6 2m was recycled 1o the Consolidated Income Statement from the hedging reserve as the corresponding hedged cash flows occurred
in the year 2011 - £9 2m})

The valusation movement on far value of denvatives 1s stated net of £28 tm paid to break the interest rate swap on the retal loan facility (Note 21 {3))




8 Tax

2012 2011

£m £m

Tax charge
Current {ax charge to income 75 Qa1
Deferred tax (25 5) 1288
Group total tax (18 Q) 1287
Tax reconcihation
Group profit/floss) on ordinary activities before 1ax 201 5 (212 8
Tax on {profit)/loss on orcinary activities at LK corporation tax rate of 24 5% (2011 — 26 59%) (49 4) 56 4
Effects of
Change in iax rate {13) 27
Adjusiments in respect of prior years 77 27
Indexation allowances and net effect of restniction or reversal of previously restricied capital losses and indexation
dllowances 425 168
Release of EZA clawback provision — 721
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes {7 0} B2
Deferred tax assets not recognised on losses on 04}
Other differences (9 8) 80
Group total tax {18 Q) 128 7

The 2012 tax rate of 24 5% has been calculated by reference to the current corporation tax 1ate of 24 0% wivch was in effect for the final 3 quarters
of the year and the previous rate of 26 0% which was in effect for the first quarter of the year

The 2011 tax rate of 26 5% was calculated by reference to the corporation tax rate of 26 0% which was in effect for the final 3 quarters of the yea
and the previous rate of 28 0% which was in effect for the irst quarter of the year

The reconciing items noted abhove i elation 1o pioparty valuation movernents rediect the following main factors

» Indexation allowances, which are calculated by reference to changes in the Retal Price index serve to change the Group's deferred tax
independently of any movermnents in valuation,

* indexation allowances cannot create or mcrease & capial loss Due to the need to restnct capital losses on certan properties where capital
allowances have been previously clamed, reductions in property valuations do not necessanly result in the recognition of a corresponding
deterred tax asset, and

+ Property valuation gans do not necessarly result in the recognition of a corresponding deferred tax liability where the valuation gain results
in a reversal of previous such restrictions

The current year included net corporation tax refunds of £2 6m Taking inte account the avallability of brought forward tax losses and other reliefs
a credi of £7 5m was recognised in the year which served 1o reduce the accrual for corporation tax payable to £48 Om at 31 December 2012 from
£52 9m at 31 December 2011 (Note 17}
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
for the year ended 31 December 2012

8 Tax continued

Losses and Revauaton  Far vaue of Francal
tax creckis defeds  dematnes  nstuments Other Tota

m £m m tm £m £m
Deferred tax assets
1 January 2011 01 124 765 256 29 1175
{Charge)/credil to income {01 0 5) 567 {3 8) 07 530
Credit to eguity — — 04 — — 04
31 December 2011 — 119 1336 218 36 1709
Credit/{charge) 1o income 35 23 (162 {30) 05 (129
Credit to equity — - 03 — — 03
31 December 2012 35 14 2 1177 188 41 158 3

Potenial
EZA  Rovauabon  Far vaueof Fnancal
dawbark surpluses denvatves  nstruments Otner Total

£mn £m £m £m £m £m
Deferred tax habiities
1 January 2011 (72 1) (108 9) - 40 7) 4 4) (227 1)
Credit/{charge) to Income 721 4 0) 53 46 22 758
Charge 1o equity — - 653 — = 53
31 Decermber 2011 - 1139 — (36 1) (6 6) {156 6)
{Charge)/credit 1o income - {12 6) 42 32 1o (12 6)
Charge to equity — — {432 - — {4 2)
31 December 2012 — {128 5) — {39 3) {7 6) {173 4)

Alt deferred 1ax assets and babilities may potentially be offset

pLIPOSEs comprses

The amount at which deferred tax 1s stated, after offsetting for financial reporting

£m
Net hability at 1 January 2011 (100 6)
Credit to Income 1288
Credit to equity {4 9)
Net asset at 31 December 2011 143
Charge to incoma {25 5)
Charge to equity (39)
Net liability at 31 December 2012 {15 1)

It 15 not possible to determine the amounts which wall crystallise within one year as required by IFRS as it 1s not possible to determine which
propertues, If any, will be sofd in the next financial vear other than thase for which an agreement 1o sell alreadly exists

A deferred tax asset has been recogmsed on the mark to market of debt and other adjustments relating to Canary Whari Group s tax position at the
date of acquisiion These deferred tax balances will be amortised to the Conselidated Income Staterent in ine with the amortisation of the far
value adjustments which gave rise 1o them

Deferred tax assets of £87 6m (31 December 2011 - £84 1m) attnbutable to unused tax losses have not been recognised as it 15 not currently
considered probable that they will be utilised

Deferred tax has been calculated by reference to a corporation tax rate of 23 0% being the rate of tax at which temporary differences are expected
to reverse The Government has also indicated that it intends to enact a reduction in the main tax rate down to 22 0% by 1 April 2014 A future
1 0% man rats reducton 1s expected, when substantively enacted, to reduce deferred tax liability by £07m  howsvar the actual impact will be
dependent on the deferred tax position at that ime




9 Operating leases

Operating leases with the Group as lessor
Canary Wharf Group leases oul s mvestment properties under operating leases as defined by IAS 17

At 31 December 2012, the weighted average unexpired lease term under non cancellable operatng leases for the entire investment property

portfolio was 14 2 years (31 December 2011 - 14 9 years)

The future aggregate minmum rentals recevable under non cancellable operating leases excluding contingent rental Income, at the balance sheet

dates are as follows

2012 2011

£m om

Within one year 2553 2552
Betwean 2 and 5 years 1,011 3 9958
After 5 ysars 2,378 5 2,589 9
3,645 1 3,840 9

10 Directors and employees

With the excephion of fees paid to the non executve Chairman and non executive directors, alf other staff costs relate to emplayees of Canary Wharf Group

Staff costs - all employees of the Group, including directors

2012 20m
£m £m

Wages and salaries 577 365
Social secunty costs 64 61
Other pension costs 44 42

68 5 66 §
The average monthly number of employeas including Canary Wharf Group, dunng 2012 was 942 {2011 - 826) as set out below

2012 2011
Construction 191 164
Property management 598 612
Administration 153 150

942 926
Directors' remuneration

2012 2013

£000 £ 000
Emoluments pard £98 560
No pension plan 1s operated by the Company and none of the directors participate n Canary Wharf Group s pension plan
Highest paid director

2012 2011

£000 £ 000
Dawid Pritchard 100 100

Other directors
Non executive directors receve an annual fee of £60,000

John Boits receves an additional £10,000 inrespect of his role as charman of the Audit Committee As reflected above, separate fee arrangements

have been agreed with the Charrman
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
for the year ended 31 December 2012

10 Directors and employees continued

Other non executive directors

Foes

£0X

Faisal Al-Hamad 50
Khalifa Al-Kuwari 50
Shekh Mohammed 8in Hamad Bin Jassim Al-Tharu 50
John Botts 60
Peter Harned 50
Jonathan Lane 50
Sam Levinson 50
Alex Midgen 50
Brian Niles 50
David P O'Connor 38

The fee for David P O Connor has been calculaled on a pro tala basts o reflect bis appontiment to the Board on 29 March 2012
The above table shows the fees paid or payable to the non execultive directars or, as applicable, therr employers

Directors’ share ophens
No executve share option plan has been adopted by the Company and none of the directors of the Company participate iIn Canary Whart Group's
share plan

Key management
The business of the Company i1s the management of its investment in Canary Wharf Group The overall business decisicns of the Company
are managed by the Boaid and its commitiees Remuneration of the directors ts as disclosed above

Pension schemes
Canary Wharf Gioup cunently operates a defined contnbution pension scheine The assets of the scheme are held in an independently administered
fund The pension cost, which amounted 1o £4 4m in the year (2011 - £4 2m) represents contnbutions payable by Canary Wharf Groug to the scheme




11 Investment development and construction properties and plant and equipment

Non current assets and construction contracts at 31 December 2011 compnsed

Investment Development Construction Piant and
propertes proparties contracls Total cpmeant Totai
£m £rn £m £m £m £m
Market value at 1 January 2011 46385 2685 - 4807 0
Adjust for brought forward
—~ tenant mcentives* {184 4) — - {184 4}
— unamortised lease negotation costs” 8 6) — = (8 6)
Carrying value at 1 January 20113 4,445 5 2685 - 4,714 0 10 47150
Additions 203 35 14 252 — 252
Revaluatien movemeant 4349 128 — 637 — 637
Transfer to cost of sales — - (5 4) (5 4) s {5 4}
Transfer to payments on account - - 40 40 —_ 40
Depreciation — — = — {0 5) {05)
Carrying value at 31 December 2011 45007 2918 - 4,801 5 05 4,802 0
Ad)ust for
- tenant incentves® 183 1 - - 183 1
- unamortised lease negotialion costs” 77 17 ~ 94
Market value at 31 December 2011 4,700 6 293 5 — 4,604 0
Refer to Note 14 for further dstails
MNon current assets and construction contracts at 31 December 2012 comprised
Imvostment Uniiar Development Construciion Prant and
properties construction properties contracts Total equpment Total
£m £m £m m £m £m £m
Market value at 1 January 2012 4,700 5 — 2935 - 49940
Adjust for brought forward
- tenant incemves® {183 1) — — — {183 1)
— unamortised lease negotiation costs’ {77 — 17 — {9 4)
Carrying value at 1 January 2012 45007 — 2018 — 48015 05 4,802 0
Addtions 186 588 64) B0 650 0z 652
Revaluation movement 147 8 151N 830 - 2157 - 2167
Transfer - gb8 (85 8) - - - —_
Transfer from investments for Wood Wharf - - 132 4 - 1324 - 1324
Transfer to cost of sales — —_ — 56 {5 6) — {5 6)
Transfer to payments on account - - - 16 116 -— 116
Caprtalised interest — 63 - - 63 - 63
Adistment for ground rent obligation - - 550 - 550 — 550
Depraciation - — — — - 01} {0 1)
Carrying value at 31 December 2012 4,676 1 135 8 4700 — 5,281 9 46 52825
Adsust for
- tenant Incentives” 1787 — — — 1787
- unamortised lease negohiation costs® 77 17 — - 94
— obligations under long term property
lease (Note 22) — - (55 0} - {55 0)
Market value at 31 December 2012 4,862 5 137 5 4150 — 54150

" Reler to Note 14 for further detals

No property Interests were held under operating leases and classiiet as investment properties

-
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
for the year ended 31 December 2012

11 Investment development and construction properties and plant and equipment contrued

On 24 December 2008, Canary Wharf Group entered into agreements with the Secretary of Stats for Transporl and CLRL for the design and
construction of the Crossral station at Canary Wharf The station will be provided to CLBL for a fixed cost of £350 Om and the consiruchon nsk
15 borne by the Group The anticipated cost to the Group was accounted for when incuried as adidiions 10 development properties and allocated to
certain development properties, ncluding the Rverside South project on a sq ft basis Canary Wharl Group's contnibution will be applied against any
Crossial Section 106 and/or Cll. contnbutions for certain agread developroent sites on the Estate which may be requisd as part of the | endon Plan

In August 2011 EMA agreed a prelet of 250 000 sq ft in a new office bulding of approximately 525 000 sq ft to be constructed at 25 Churchili
Place EMA also has a call option over an additional 108 000 sq ft Construction of the shell and cora of the bulding commenced in February 2012
at which tme the bulding was reclassilied as properties under construction at its market value of £80 0m as adusted tor deferred neyotiation costs
of £1 7m In accordance with Canary Wharf Group’s strategy at Canary Wharl the substructure of the building had already been complated

Canary Whar! Group also decided to proceed with the construction of the retall mall of approxinately 115,000 sq ft iocated above the Crossrall
station As a result, the market vatue of this property at 31 December 2011 of £7 5m was transferred 1o properties under construction

Canary Wharf Group has entered nto a £190 Om construction and development loan faciity which waill be used to fund the construction of
25 Churchill Place (Note 21(5); The first diawdown under this loan facility occuned in January 2013 and from this date, the finance costs
associated with the loan will be capialised as part of the cost of this bulding

Prior to drawdown under this facility, Canary Whart Group funded both properties under construction from its unrestricied cash Inferast has been
caprtalised as part of the cost of the projects from the date construction commenced At 31 December 2012, £6 3m of general Intesest had been
allocated by reference to Canary Wharf Group’s weighted average cost of debt and the histoncal cost of the properties under constiuction
(31 December 2011 - £rul)

There s no capiahsed interast In the calying amaunt of the development properties at erther 31 December 2012 or 31 December 2011 The carrying
amount of the properties under constructon includes an aggregate total of £6 3m of capialised nterest (31 December 2011 - £ni)

In January 2012, Ganary Wharf Group completed its acquisition of BWB’s 50 0% interest In the Wood Whar jomt venture The acquisiion of the
interests n Wood Wharf has been accounted for as an asset acquisition As a result the carrying value of the Wood Wharf interests of £132 4m,
compnsing the carrying value of Canary Wharf Group's iInvestment in the entities which owned Wood Whart at 31 December 2011 (accounied for at
thal date as an Investment n assoaiated undertakings) together with the cost of acquinng BWB's 50 0% effective Interest has been transferred
from tnvestments (Note 12) to Development properties within Non current assets

In June 2012 Canary Wharf Group acquired a further site integral to the fulure development of Wood Wharf The consideration paid was £9 5m
plus costs of £0 4m

In Novermnber 2008 Canary Wharf Group entered into an agresment with J P Morgan for the development of the Riverside Souith site on the Estate
Canary Wharf Group acts as development and construction manager in refation 1o the site and has raceived 276 Om as an advance of developer’s
profit Thig sum will be set against Canary Wharf Group s entitlement to future profits ansing from the development Incorme earned on this project
subseguent to the sale of the site n 2008 has been deferred and s recognised over the teim of the contract in accordance with IFRIC 15 No profit
has been recogrised on this project {o date The 2008 agreement was modified n 2010 and expres i Oclober 2016 In the event construction
does not progress, Canary Whar! Group has a nght of fist offer for the site

Valuation

The far valug of Canary Wharf Group’s properties has been amved at on the basis of valuations carned out by external valuers, CBRE, Savills
or Cushman ag at 31 December 2012 The valuations which conform to International Valuztion Stanclards were armved at by reference to market
evidence of transaction pnees for similar properties The properties have been valued indwvidually and not as part of a portfolo and no allowance
has been made for expenses of realisation or for any tax which might anse Thie valuations reflect usual deductions in tespect of puichaser’s costs
and n particular, full flability for UK stamp duty as applhcable at the valuation date

.

The assumptions on which the valuations are based are summansed in the Valuations section of the Bustness Review

Included in nvestmient pioperties 1s an amount of approximately £26 4m (31 December 2011 — £26 8m) in respact of property occupied by Canary
Wharl Group which in the opinton of the directors 1s not mateiial for sepaiate classification

The histonical cost of propertws held as non current assels was £4,111 5m (31 December 2011 - £3,901 8m) At 31 Decembar 2012
and 31 December 2011, no property was subject to a finance lease obligation

Direct operating expenses ansing from investment properties that did not gererate rental ncome 10 the year totalled £9 7m in 2012 (2011 — £7 5m)




11 Investment development and construction properties and plant and equipment continued

Construction contracts

Construction contracts comprse amounts recoverable under long term development contracts less payments on account The amounts

for payments on account at the balance sheet clate are as follows

Rverside
South
£m
1 January 2011 375
Advances receved 114
Contract revenue recognised as revenue in the Consclidated Income Statement B4
Offset from construction contracts 44
31 December 2011 479
Advances receved 49
Contract revenue recognised as revenue i the Consolidated income Statement (56)
Offset from construction contracts 116
Gross amount due to customers for contract work at 31 December 2012 58 8
Cumulative amounts accounted for as construction contracts are as follows
on
Advances receved 128 4
Recognised as revenua (66 6)
Offset from construchion contracts S0
Payments on account (Note 17) 588
No retentions were held by custemers for contract work at either 31 December 2012 or 31 Decermber 2011
12 Investmenis
The iwestments balance comprises
2012 201
£m fm
Shares 07 G7
Loans 625 106 4
632 107 1
Fees on acquisition 07 50
Share of post acquisition losses {0 1) {0 9)
Revatuation of property interests 112 76
Impairment of investment {0 4) {53
746 1125

The far values of all equity secunties are based on the net assets of those companes as adusted for the far values of assets and liabilities

Investments comprse

2012 041

£m £m

Associates and joint ventures 744 1123
Other Investrments 02 02
746 1125
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
for the year ended 31 December 2012

12 Investments continued

Associates and joint ventures
The camrying value of the investment in associates and jont ventures compnsed

20 Fenchurch Shel

Sirest Centre Total
At 31 Docember 2012 £m £m £mn
Intial mvestment 01 - 01
Fees - 07 07
Loan funding 372 253 8625
Recogmised share of losses (V)] - ©on
Share of revaluation surplus 112 — 112

48 4 26 0 744

The drectors consider that the values of the projects are not less than the amounis invested at the balance sheet date

Details of the Group § associates and jont ventures at 31 December 2012 are as follows

Ownershp interest

Date of acquishon Coumiry of NCOPOaon %

20 Fenchurch Street Qctober 2010 UK/ Jersay 150
Shell Cantre July 2011 UK/Jersay 500

n Juty 2011, Canary Wharf Group entered into a 50 50 joint veniure with Qatan Diar to redevelop the Sheil Centre The investors are each
committed to contribubing £150 Om 10 secure the 5 25 acre site on a 998 year lease  The aggregate £300 Om payment for the site 1s conditional on
planning permission beng receved for the project within 3 years Canary Wharf Group's investment to 31 December 2012 totalied £26 Om
{31 December 2011 — £20 2m) incluciing fees of £0 7m (31 Decembel 2011 - £0 7mm)

In October 2010 Canary Wharf Group announced that it had entered Into a joint venture with Land Securiies (o develop 20 Fenchurch Street After
synchication, Canary Wharf Group has retained a 15 0% equity interest in the joint venture and s acting as sole construction manager and Joint
development manager The Group's Investment was stated at £48 4m at 31 Decernber 2012 (31 Dacember 2011 — £29 4m) representing the
intial nvestment plus assocrated fees together with suhseaqient funding less Canary Whard Group s share of operating losses At 30 Septemiber 2012,
an external valuation 1esulted n a cumulaiive revaluation surplus of £74 5m on the project of which £11 2m s atinbutable to Canary Wharf Group
Including the revaluation of property, at 31 December 2012 the 20 Fenchurch Street entities had assets of £325 3m and labibties of £2 8m

In Aprl 2005 BWE appointed Canary Wharf Group together with Ballymore, as ts partners for the development of Wood Wharf A jont veniure
was established to oversee the development of an approximatsly 7 Om sq ft (gross) mixed use scheme in which Canary Wharf Group anginatly had
a 25 0% effectve interest In addition to an inial entry premwm, Canary Wharf Group subscribed for interest free iong term redeemable ioan notes
to fund the working capital requirements of the joint venture

In December 2011, Canary Wharf Group acquired an additional 25 0% effective Interest in the joint venture from Ballymore for a total consideration
of £38 Om As a result of the acquisition of Ballymoie's interest Ganary Wharf Gioup held a 50 0% inteiest in the joint ventura at 31 Decemben 2011
The investment continued to be accounted for at thal date as an investment in an associated underaking

At 31 Decemnber 2011, the carrying value of the Group's investmeni In Wood Wharf was £62 7m which compnsed the initial entry premium of €1 9m
and subsequent loan funding of £27 1m less Imparments and the Group's share of post acquisition losses recognised totaling £6 Om  together
with the cost of acquinng Ballymore s interest of £38 Om and fees of €1 7m

In January 2012 Canary Wharf Group acquired the remaining 50 0% effectve interest in Wood Wharl from BEWB for a total consideration of £52 4m
As aesult of this acquisiion the carrying value of the Group's consohdaterd Investment i1 Wood Wharf has been transfened 1o Development
properties within Non current assets

In comunction with the acquistion BWE granted a new 250 year lease of the site subject 1o a ground rent payable to BWB which will ncrease
o £6 Om per annum by 2016, followed by upwards only reviews Iinked 1o the passing rent acheved on the office buldings and the ground ents
paid by purchasers of the residential apartments to be built on the site {Note 22) The £52 4m consideration payable to BWB compnses an upfront
payment of £4 4m and loan notes requinng repayment n 4 annuat instalmants up to and including 2015 (Note 21(8))




12 Investments continued

Assoclates and joint ventures continued

The carrying value of the investment In Wood Whart transferred from Investments can be summansed as

£m
Carrying value of the Group’s investment in Wood Wharf entities at 31 December 2011 627
Consideration payable 1o BWB 52 4
Fees and SDLT 67
1218

Comprising
Amount transferred to development properties 1324
Other net llabiltties acquired {10 6)
1218

The Shell Centre entities have a 31 December financial year end and the 20 FSLP entiies have a 31 March financial yeal end The results of 20 FSLP
and the Shell Centre entities attnbutable to Canary Wharf Group have been denved from ther latest avalable management accounts after making
any necessary adustments Canary Wharf Group's share ¢f the profits and losses of 1ts joint ventures and associates 1s as follows

20 Fenchurch
Stroet Shell Cerre
Summansed profit and loss accounts for 2012 m m
Administrative expenses 07 -
Revaluation gamn 239 —
Profit before and after tax 232 —
Group share 36 —
20 Fencnurch
Wood Whiarf Street Sholl Contre
Summarised profit and loss accounts for 2011 £m £m om
Cther income/{costs) 02 {10} —
Revaluation gain - 506 -
Net inancing ¢osls 09 - -
{Loss)/profit before and after tax 07 496 —
Group ghare 0 2) 75 —
20 Fenchurch
Street Shell Centre
Summansed balance sheets at 31 December 2012 m £m
Total assets 3253 521
Total labilties {2 8) a9
Net assets 3225 508
Group share 48 4 253
20 Fenchurch
Wood Whar Street Shall Centre
Summansed balance sheets at 31 December 2011 £m £m m
Total assets 1361 1969 40 4
Total iabilities (43 9) {09 (14)
Net assets 922 1960 390
Group share 46 1 29 4 195

Other iInvestments

Canary Wharf Group owns 52 (73 B preferred ordinary shares of 0 1p and 112,220 ordinary shares of 0 1p inHsO, an unisted company registered in England
and Wales, beng approximately 13 0% of ts nominal share capital The principal actmvty of HsO 1s the provision of broadband telecommunications services
The far value of this investment on acgusition of Canary Wharf Group was £0 6m Dunng 2006, the camyng value of the mvestment was written down
10 £0 2m (after a total provision of £0 4m), basect o the net asset value of HsD at that date and continues 1o be camed at that amount
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
for the year ended 31 December 2012

13 Trade and other recevables

2012 2011

£m £m

Trade recewvables 106 48
Other recevables 64 208
Prepayments and accrusd incomse 209 171
Defened financing expenses 72 42
Total trade and other receivables 451 487

Financing expenses totallng £7 2nm incurred on Canary Wharf Group’s construction loan facdity have been daferred The first drawdown under this faciity
occumed in January 2013 as a resuit of which these fees will be transferred to Bormowings and netted against the outstanding balance on the loan

In determining the recoverability of trade recevables the Group considers any ¢hange In the credit quality of the recevables on an individual basts
from the date the trade recevable was crealed o the date the accounts were approved Credit nsk 15 reduced due to Canary Wharf Groups
properties being under lease to high qualty tenants In addition rerts and service charges are invoiced quarterly In advance

At 31 December 2012 trads recenvables included 2 trade debtors in excass of £1 Om, with an aggregate amount outstanding of £8 9m represanting
84 0% of gross trade recevables at that date Both amounts were recaved in January 2013

Trade recevables more than 61 days past due at 31 December 2012 totalled £1 6m (31 December 2011 - £2 2m) At 31 December 2012
provisions aganst bad or doubtful trade debts totalled £0 1m (31 December 2011 - £0 1m) and the bad debt expense for the year was £nil
No impanment provisions wete required aganst any other class of financial asset at either 31 December 2012 or 31 December 2011

Prepayments and accrued income exclude the cumuiative adjustment in sespect of lease incentives (Note 14)

14 Tenani incentives and other non current asseis

Lease incentives include rent free penods and other incentives given to lessees on entenng into lease arrangsments

Orther Total Defermed
Rent free tanant Tenant negataton
ponods INCENtves INCOIVeS costs Total
£m £m omn £m £m
1 January 2011 817 1027 184 4 86 1930
Recognition of rent during rent free penods 122 - 122 - 122
Amortisation 81) (5 4) {13 5) {06} (14 1)
Deferred lease negoliation costs - - — 14 14
31 December 2011 858 973 1831 g4 1925
Recognition of rent during rent free penods 78 - 78 - 78
Amortisation 69) B3 {12 2} a1 {133)
Deferred lease negotiabion ¢osts — — — 11 11
31 December 2012 86 7 920 178 7 94 188 1

15 Monetary deposits

Monetary deposits compnse amounts held on deposit wath onginal matunties in excess 0f 3 months or not held for the purpase of meeting short term cash
commitments These deposts are charged, relate to Canary Wharf Group's construction contracts and mature over the ife of those contracts

2012 2011
£m &m
Monetary deposits held at bank 23 39

The effective Interest rate on monetary deposits was 0 6% (31 Decermber 2011 - 0 6%)




47

16 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise

012 20711

£m £m

Unsecured cash 6187 864 8
Colateral for borrowings 1185 167
Secunty for obligations 125 146

7497 996 1
Unsecured cash compnses £31 8m held by the Company and its wholly owned subsidianes and £586 9m held by Canary Wharf Group

The effective interest rate on short term deposits at 31 December 2012 was 0 7% (31 December 2011 - O 8%) and the deposits had an average
maturity of 61 days (31 December 2011 — 45 days)

SIUBLUSIE]S [BIDLBLIY

Cash and cash equivalents compnse cash held by the Group and short term bank deposits with an onginat matuity of 3 months orless The carrying
amount of these assets approximates their far vakie

The Group s collateral for borrowings can be analysed by the borrowings to which it relates as foltows

2012 2011

£m £m

Secuntised debt 702 97 8
Secured toans 190 189
Wood Wharf loan notes 293 —
118 5 116 7

Of the cash collateral disclosed above, all of the secured loans halance and £13 8m of the secunbised debi balance (31 December 2011 - £14 8m)
represenis rental paymeants from tenants recerved In advance

The balance of cash coliateral for borrowings disclosed above is held to reduce the exposura of the lenders to centan nsks such as cash collateralising
the Group s exposure on vacant property These amounts aie released from charge as and when such nsks are elminated in accordance with the
terms of the loans

17 Trade and other payables and corporation tax

2012 2001

£m £m

Trade payables 78 75
Tax and social securty costs 79 7o
Other payables 108 242
Cther accruals 847 67 9
Deferred income 670 814
Payrments on account (Note 11) 58 8 47 9
Total trade and other payables 2370 236 1
Corporation tax 480 52 ¢

Trade and other payables includes £93 1m of financial habilities at 31 December 2012 (31 December 2011 - £78 9m) These amounts are alf
payable on demand

Trade creditars and accruals pnncipally compnse amounts outstanding for trade purchases and construction costs The average credit period taken
for trade purchases 15 12 days (31 December 2011 — 18 days) For those supplers that do charge interest no interest 1s charged on the trade
payables for the first 28 days from the date of the nvoice Thereafter interest 1s charged on the outstanding balances at vanous interest rates which
are determined by reference to the terms of gach such agreement The Group has financial nsk management pokces in place which seek to ensure
that all payables are paid within the credit timeframe The directors consider that the carrying amount of trade payables approximates ther far value

For further information on corporation tax refer to Note B




48 Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
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18 Current portion of long term borrowings

The current portion of long term borrowings compnses

2012 201
£m £m
Accrued interest payable 246 27 1
Repayable within one year
— secunitised debt 613 575
— secured loans 142 90
— hnaneing costs of non equity shaies 60 -
— Wood Whari loan notes 82 —
Long term borrowings repayable within one year 114 3 938
The terms of the Group’s loan facibties are summarnised in Note 21
19 Borrowings
Non current liability barrowings compnse
2012 201,
£m £m
Securtised debt 2,256 4 2,3221
Wood Wharf toan notes 588 -
Secured loans 974 9 9830
3,290 1 3,3051
Preferenca Shares 264 6 2705
3,554 7 35756

The terms of the Group s Joan facilities are summansed in Note 21

20 Derwvative financial instruments

Hedge accounting

The Group uses nteresl rate swaps to hedge exposure tc the vanability n c.esh flows on floating rele debt including s bank facilies and floating
rate bonds caused by moverments in market rates of interest At 31 Decemnber 2012, the far value of these dervatives resulted m the recognition
of a habilty of £525 3m {31 December 2011 - of £547 1m) The Group has no interest rate swaps or collars which qualfy for hedge accounting

2012 2011
£m m

Liabilties
Securitisation 286 23 2802
QOther secured loans 2367 2669
Preferenca Shares 23 -
5253 547 1




20 Dernvative financial nstrumenis continued

Matunty of the Group’s financial denvatives
The following tables show uncdiscounted cash flows in relation to the Group s dervative financial instruments based on the Group's prediction
of futLre movements In Intelest 1ales !

Other Total

Secursed sacured derivative

debt loans liabtites

£m £m £m

Within one year 243 342 585
In one to 2 years 278 369 645
In 2 to 5 years 713 771 1484
In 50 10 years 667 619 1286
In 10 to 20 years 950 700 1650
In 20 to 30 years 299 103 402
31 December 2011 3148 290 4 605 2
Other Total

Securtised soacured dertvative

debt lpans habilihes

£m gyl £m

Within one year 299 26 4 563
In one to 2 years 293 251 544
In 2 to 5 years 88 4 749 1633
In 510 10 years 483 1108 259 2
In 10 to 20 years 299 8 157 5 457 3
In 20 to 30 years 68 1 147 828
31 December 2012 8638 408 5 1,073 3

Tha impact of changes ininterast rates would be on interest recenvable since substantialty all borrowings are subject 1o Interest rate swaps and all
cash deposits aie at fioating rates However, the Consolidaied Income Statement is also impacted by changes in the fan value of detvatves that
are not considlered effective for accounting purposes A Q 5% higher/llower) paralle! shit n the interest rate curve used to value the dervalives with alt other
vanables held constant, would have increased/daecreased) the Group's net assets for 2012 by £119 3mAT(I307Im {2011 ~ £112 0m/L(130 4jm)
hy changing the profit or loss for the year by the same amount Other equity reserves would have boen unchanged as none of the Group's donvatves
qualify for hedge accountng The 0 5% sensitvity has teen selecied based on the directors’ view of a reasonable interest rate curnve movement assumption
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

for the year ended 31 December 2012

21 Net debt
2012 2011
£m £m
Securmised debt 2,6252 26827
Wood Wharf ioan notes 670 -
Other secured loans 1,229 2 1 263 1
39214 39458
Non equity shares and associated financing costs 2729 2705
Gross debt 4,194 2 22163
Current hiabilities 1143 936
Nen current tabitios
- borrowings 3,5547 35756
- denvatives included in non current labilmes 5253 547 1
Gross debt 4,194 3 42163
Cash and cash equvalents {749 7) {996 1)
Monetary deposits {2 3) 39
Net debt 3,4423 3.2163

As aresult of the werms and conditions of the Preferpnce Shares, such sharas have been classihed as borrowngs The tenmns and condiliong of the
Preference Shares warg amended in the year and further detaills of the amended terms are disclosed in Note 24 The Consolidated Income
Staternant includies a charge to piofit in 1espect of the coupon payable calculated at 8 76% per annum after allowing for 1he related interest
rate swap Fees incurred of £7 2m in connection with the amendment to the terms of the Preference Shares have been deferred and will be
amortised over the remaining life of the Preference Shares A Preference Dwidend of £8 Om {including related swap cosis) has been accrued

at 31 December 2012 and was paid m January 2013 (31 December 2011 - £nd)

The amounts at which bonowings are stated, including share capital classified as debt comprse

Wood Whart Otrer
Secuntisod lnan socurod Tolal Mon oquty
it notes oans horrowings shares Total
£m £ om £m £m £m
1 January 2012 26827 - 12631 38458 2705 4,216 3
Secured aganst Wood Whart - 277 49 326 - 326
On acquisition of BWB's interest n Wood Wharf - 480 - 450 - 480
Effective interest rate adustment 2 6) [(eR-)] 12 {18) (59 7
Acciued finance charges 35 - 09 {44 263 218
Repad n year {57 5} 83 (89) 747} {20 3) (95 0}
Movements in farr value of derivatives 61 — 302) (24 1} 23 {21 8)
31 December 2012 2,625 2 670 1,229 2 39214 2729 4,194 3
Payable within one year or on demand 825 82 176 1083 60 1143
Payable in more than one year 2256 4 588 974 9 3290 1 264 6 3,554 7
Dervatves classified as
— non current llabiities 286 3 — 2367 5230 23 5253
2,625 2 67.0 1,229 2 39214 2729 4,194 3

All the borrowings of Canary Wharf Group are secured aganst designated property interests of Canary Wharf Group




21 Net debt continued

)

@

(3)

{4}

At 31 Dacesmber 2012, the foliowing noles issued by CWF Il a subsichary of Canary Wharf Group, were outstanding

Principal

Class £m Interost Repayrmernt
Al 10378 6455% By instalment from 2009 to 2030
A3 4000 5052% By instalment from 2032 to 2035
A7 2220 Floating In 2035
B 1832 6800% By instalment from 2005 to 2030
B3 104 0 Floating  In 2035
c2 2750 Floating 0 2035
D2 12560 Floalng  1n 2038

2347 0

In Apnt 2009 Canary Whar Group repuichascd certan floating rate Notes with an aggiegate principal amount of £119 7m for an aggregate
consideration excluding accrusd interest of £35 5m The Notes repurchased have not been cancelled, remain 1 issue and in accordance
with the reguirements of the secuntisation continue to be fully bediged The repurchase was accounted tol as an extinguishment of debt

Interest on the floating rate Notes 1s at 3 month LIBOR plus a margin The margins on these Neles are A7 Notes — 0 19% p a increasing
to 0 475% in January 2017, B3 Notes — G 28% p a increasing to 0 7% in January 2017, C2 Notes - 055% pa increasing 1o 1 375% in
Apnl 2014, and D2 Nees - 0 84% p a incieasing to 2 1% in Aprl 2014

All of the floating rate Notes are hedgen by means of interest rate swaps and the hedged 1ates plus the margins are A7 Notes - 5 1135%
B3 Notes — 5 1625% C2 Notes — 5 4416% and D2 Notes — 5 8005% These swaps expic in 2035 concurnient with the Notes

Inaddition to the 3 classes of floating rate Notes refered 10 abave  the following classes of Ixed rate Notes remained outstanding at 31 December 2012
carrying the mterest 1ates stated £1,037 8m of A1 Notes — 6 455% £400 Om of A3 Notes — 5952% and £183 2m of B Notes - 6 800%

The pnncipal amount of the Notes outsianding at 31 December 2012 was £2 347 Om, or £2,227 3m excluding the Notes repurchased
The Notes are secured on certain property interests of Canary Wharf Group and the rental ncome stream theiefrom

The secuntisation has the benefit of an arrangament with AIG which covers the rent in the event of a default by the tenant of 33 Canacla Sauare,

over the entire term of the lease AIG has posted approximately £262 1m as cash collatera! in respect of this obligation The annual fee payabie
in rospect of the airangement 1s £2 1m

CWF Il also has the benefit of a £300 Om guicity faciity povided by Lloyds under wihich drawings may be macle in the event of a cash flow
shortage under the secuntisation This facility 1s renewable annually

The weighted average matunty of the debentures at 31 December 2012 was 14 8 years (31 December 2011 - 15 5 years) The debentures
may be redeemed at the aption of the issuer In an aggregale amount of not less than £1 Om on any interest payment date subject 1o the current
rating of the deb:entures not beaing adversely affected and certain other conditions affecting the amount te be redeemed

Canary Wharf Group has a £92 3m 5 year facilty secured aganst 50 Bank Street The faciity carnes interest at 3 meonth LIBOR plus a margin
of 2 0% The exposure to movements it UBOP 1s fully hediged at an all in rate including marging of 4 415% The loan 1s repayable n June 2016

Canary Wharf Group has a £350 0m loan faciity secured against Canary Wharf Group's pnncipal retail properties and its car parking interests

This loan facildy cames interest at 3 month LIBOR plus a margn of 2 75% Al inceptron of the loan, Canary Whar Group entered into an
arrangement whereby the exposure to the movement in LIBOR rates 15 fully hedged with fixed interest rate swaps at a wexghted average
including margins of 7 2% The loan s repayable in December 2014

In December 2012 Canary Wharf Group cancelied the interest rate hedge and paid the negative mark to market of £29 1m A new interest rate
swap was then put in place at a rate of § 5425% which, including the margin of 2 75% has served 10 reduce the effective interest rate under
the loan facilty to 3 3% from 7 2% The costs associated with broaking the interest rate swap have been takento Denvative financial instruments
i Non curient labihities

A bank loan compnsing an inial pancipal of £608 8m 1s secured against One Churchill Place This loan amortises with a balloon payment
of £155 0m on matunty n July 2034 The lean carnies a hedged interest rate of 5 82% Dunng 2012, £8 9rn of loan prncpal was repaid
N accordance with the loan agreement, reducing the prncipal at 31 December 2012 to £550 7m
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
for the year ended 31 December 2012

21 Net debt continued

{5)

&)

In December 2011 Canary Wharf Group entered into a £180 Om development loan faciity secured aganst the property now under consiruction
at 25 Churchill Place Ng drawdowns had been made under this faciity at 31 Decernber 2012 The margin on the loan s 300 bps over LIBOR from
first crawdown to rent commencement, following which the margin may cirop o 225 bps subject Lo the satistaction of certain interest caver iests
A forward staring nterest rate swap was entered Imo in QOctober 2012 at a rate of 1 017% which fixes the interest rate payable unde the loan
The fxed 1ate payahle dunng the construction phase nclucling the 300 bps margin 1s 4 02% The termination date uncler the swap 1s in December
2016 Upfront fees of £4 2m were incurred an entenng into the faciity and a commitrment fee of 150 bps pa 1s payabls on the undrawn facilny
At 31 December 2012 total foes of £7 2m had hecn incurred which have been deferred and will e arnorised over the life of the loan

The consideration for the acqusiion of BWB's 50 0% interest in Wood Whart was £52 4m The £52 4m payment compased an upfront
payment of £4 4m and loan notes with the following repayment piofile 30 September 2012 — £8 25m (iedeemed) 30 September 2063
- £8 25m, 30 September 2014 - £15 5m and 30 September 2015 - £16 Om  Interest 1s payable on the lban notes atarate of 6 3% p a

Prior to the acquisition of Wood Wharf the jont venture entiies had entered into a non recourse loan facility of £5 2m The loan carnes
an interest 1ate of L IBOR plus a margin of 2 5% and the final maturity 1s in December 2013 Amortisation of £0 3m was paid i the yea: and the
balance owing on the loan at 31 December 2012 was £4 6m

The joint venture entitigs had also ssued discounted loan notes with an outstanding valus at 31 December 2012 of £27 5m 1o fund the
acquisition of certain parts of Wood Wharf Interest on the discounted loan notes 15 payable at 3 month LIBOR plus 1 0% pa from the
dates specified and at 31 December 2012 the notes in issue were as follows

In1s5U8 Ouscont Nommal value

€ £ £ Interest tngger date
‘A loan notes 8 659,498 — B 658498 6 February 2006
‘B’ loan notes 7 640,000 — 78640000 6 February 2009
‘C' loan notes 7,217 290 32710 7,250,000 B February 2013
‘D loan notes 394B,716 582,53¢ 4531,250 § February 2016

27 465,504 615,244 28080 748

The loan notes are fully cash collateralised (see Note 16) and are due for repayment 15 years from the date of 1ssue n February 2021 i the holder
of the loan notes serves a redlemption notice before the repayment date then the foan note repayrment date s 12 months fiom the date of the notice
s0 long as that date does not fall due before the Interest tngger date During 2012, £0 8m of the discountad loan notes were redeemed

Maturity profile of borrowings

Secumhsed ﬁ WoodWhar!  Preference
dabt loans loan notes Shares Total
o m £m m o
Contractual undiscounted cash flows at 31 December 2011
Within one year 1750 341 - - 2091
In one to 2 years 172 4 317 - - 204 1
In 2 to 5 years 52086 5264 - 4414 1,488 4
In 510 10 years 8324 14486 — — 9773
In 10 to 20 years 1,375 3 3438 — - 1,7181
In 20 10 30 years 11402 2497 — — 1,388 9
42159  1,3306 — 441 4 5,987 9
Compnsing
Principal repayments 2,284 7 10019 — 2750 3,561 6
Interest payments 19312 3287 — 166 4 2,426 3

4,215 9 1,330 6 — 441 4 5,987 9




21 Net debt continued

Matunty profile of borrowings contimued

Socuntised segz Wood Wharl  Preference
debt ioans ladn notes Shares Total
£m £m £m £m £m
Contractual undiscounted cash flows at 31 December 2012
Within oneg year 1705 33 4 110 235 2384
In one to 2 years 1720 3819 177 237 5953
In 2 to 5 years 495 5 147 6 182 738 7351
In 5 to 1Q years ' 7440 960 287 3143  1,1840
In 10 to 20 years 12194 256 2 - - 14756
In 20 to 30 years 928 1 204 2 — — 1,132 3
3,720 5 1,119 3 76 6 435 3 5,360 7
Compnsing
Principal repayments 22272 997 5 B7 8 2750 3,567 5
Interest payments 1,502 3 1218 88 160 3 1,793 2
3,7205 1,119 3 76 6 435 3 5,360 7

The above tables contain undiscounted cash flows (Inclucing interest) and therefole result in higher balances than the carrying values or far values

of the borrowings

Debt service

The weighted average interest rates paid on borrowings at the batance sheet dates were as follows

2012 2011
% s
Secuntisation 622 622
Cther secured loans 479 6186
Wood Wharf loan notes 4 35 —

Comparison of market values and carrying amount

2012 2011
Market Carmyng Markat Carryng
valug amount Difference valuer armourt Drfferonco
£m £m £m m £m £m
Secuntisation (2,5212) {23389 {182.3) (2,3055) (24025) 970
Wood Whari loan notes {67 0) {67 0) - - - -
Secured loans (994 4) {992 5) (19 {997 8) (998 2) {16}
Non eguity shares (270 6) {270 6) - {270 5) (270 5) -
(3,8532) (3.6690Q) {184.2) (3,5738) (36692 95 4
Cther financial labibties

— interest rate dervatives {525 3) {525 3) - {547 1) (547 1) —
Cash and monetary deposits 7520 7520 - 1,0000 10000 —
Total (3,626 5) (3,442 3) {184.2) (3,1209) {32163) 95 4

The differences above are shown befare any tax relief Short term recewvables and payables have been excluded from these disclosures as ther
carying amount approximates fain value The fan value of the sterling denominated fixed rate bonds has been determined by reference to the prices
avallable on the markets on which they are tracfed The farr values of other debt instruments have been calculated by discounting cash flows at the
relevant zero coupon LIBOR interest rates pravaling at the balance sheet date The far value of the Preference Shares s considerad to be ther
carrying value The far values of nterest rate denvative instruments have heen determined by reference to market values prowided by the relevant

counter parties
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
for the year ended 31 December 2012

21 Net debt continued

Carrying value of categones of financial instruments

2012 2011
£m £m
Financial assets ‘
Loans and recevables 7774 1,0199
Available jor sale 02 02
7776 10201
Assets not classiied as financial assets 5,564 7 51479
Total assets 6,342 3 61680
Financial habilities
FVTPL {525 3) {547 1)
Amortised cost {3,7692) (37575
' (4,204 5) (2,304 6)
Liabilsties not classified as financia! hahiites {273 4) 210 Q)
Total habilities {45679} (451486)
Net assets 1,774 4 16534

All the dervative instruments held by the Group {categoised as FVIPL) «ie classiied as Level 2 as defined in accordance with IFRS 7

Financial risks

Interest rate nsk

The Greup finances its operations through a mixture of swrplus cash bank bonowings and debentures The Group horrows principally in sterling at
hoth fixed and floating rates of interest and then uses nterest rate swaps (o generate the desned miterest profile and to manage the Group’s
exposure to mterest 1ate fluctuations The Group's policy 1s to keep the majonty of its bonowings at fixed rales After taking into account interest
rate hedging and cash deposits the only borrowings which remain as floating debt comprse certan labiliies taken on as part of the acquisiion
of Wood Whaf '

Liquichty nsk

The Gioup's policy 15 to ensure continuity of funding and at 31 December 2012 the aveirage matunty of Canary Wharf Group's debt was 13 0 years
(31 December 2011 — 13 O years) Shorter term flexibiity has histoncally been achieved by hokling cash on deposit and through construction
facities typically with a term of 3 to 6 years arranged to fund the development of new properties

Loan covenants
The Group's loan faciities are subject to financial covenants which include meaamum LTV ratios and mmimum ICRs The key covenants for each
of Canary Whari Group s main facilities are as {ollows

1) CWF Il secunhsation, encompassing 7 investment properties representing 65 6% of the investment property portfolio by value The pnncipal
amount gutstanding at 31 December 2012 was £2 347 Om or £2,227 3m excluding the repurchased Notes

Maximum LMCTV ratic of 100 0% Based on the valuations at 31 December 2012 the LMCTV ratio at the micrest payment date n January 2013
would have been 70 2%

The securitisation has no mmimum ICR covenant Canary Wharf Group has the ability to remedy a breach of covenant by depositing eligible
investments (including cash) The final matunty date of the secuntisation 1s 2035, subject to earlier amortisation on certain classes of Notes

() Loan of £550 7m secured agamnst One Churchill Place, representing 15 8% of the investment property portfolio by value
This facility 15 not subject 1o any LTV or ICR covenants and has a final matunty of 2034 subject to amortisation aver that term

() Loan of £350 Om secured against the ietal and infrastructure parking propertics of Canary Wharf Group representing 15 6% of the investment
property partfolie by value

Maximum L7V rabio 0f 70 0% Based on the valuations at 31 December 2012, the LTV was 26 5%

Minimum ICR covenant of 120 0% The covenant was satisfied throughout the year The Group has the abibty to temedy any potemtizl breach
of covenant by depositing cash

The faciity repayment date is 17 December 2014




21 Net debt continued

Financial nsks continued
Loan covenants continued
(iv) Loan of £82 3m secured against 50 Bank Street, representing 3 0% of the investment property portfolio by value

Maximurmn LTV ratic of 75 0% for the first 3 years of the loan reducing to 72 5% thereafter Based on the valuation at 31 December 2012
the LTV was 63 7%

The mimmum IGK covenant 1s 150 0% The covenant was satsfied throughout the year
The faciity repayment date 1s 7 June 2016

Exchange rate nsk
The Group s policy 1s to maximise all financing in sterfing and it has no plans to raise financing in currencies other than sterkng

Capital nsk

The Group manages its capial to ensure that entities n the Group will be able to continue as going concerns The capital structure of the
Gioup consists of debt cash and cash eguivalents ancl monctary asscts, as disclosed elsewhero in this Note and eguity including 1scves,
as disclosed In Note 24 and the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Credit nsk
Credit nsk associated with trade recervables s disclosed in Note 13

The Group's policies restrict the counterpariies with which denvative transactions can be contracted and cash balances deposited This ensures
that exposue 1 spread across a number of approved financial nstitutions with higher credit ratings

The cairying amount of financial assets recorded in the financial statements repiesents the Group's maximum exposuie to credit nsk
Externally imposed capital requirements
The Group 15 not subject to externally imposed capital regurernents

22 Other non current liabilities

Wood Wharf Wood Wharl
deforred ground ront

consdaraton obkgation Total

£m m £m

On acquisition of BWB s interest in Wood Wharf g5 550 645
Accrued finance charges - 53 53
Repaid n paricd 10 29) {39
31 December 2012 85 57 4 659

Prior to Canary Wharf Group's acqgusion of Wood Wharl the joint venture entities entered into a put and call option agreement with UBS UK
Properties Limited to acquire 2 Harbour Quay on Wood Wharf The consideration ranges from £10 25m to £10 75m depending on the exercise
date of the option which 1s anytime between 25 Decermber 2014 and 25 December 2017  Dunng that time the jont venture entities have the nght to
acquire the bulding and UBS have the nght, on giving notice, 1o require the purchase of the hulking on 25 December 2016 or 25 December 2017

As part of the agreement initial payments of £2 5m have been made and annual payments of £1 0m are required in order to retan the option
to purchase If the option 1s exercised by ether party, the inhal payments and the subsenuent annual payments will be deducted from the
consideration At 31 December 2012 the deferred consideration payable to UBS is carned at £8 5m including related fees

In January 2012 Canary Wharf Group acquired the remaining 50 0% efiecive interest n Wood Wharf irom BWS for a total consideration of €52 4m
In conunction with the acquisiton BWE granted a new 250 year lease of the site subject to a ground rental payment to BWE which will increase
to £6 0m per annum by 2016 {ollowed by upwards only reviews linked to the passing 1ent achieved on the office buldings and the ground 1ents
paud by purchasers of the residential apartments tc be built on the site The net present value of the mimmum contracted ground rents payabie
under the terms of the 250 year lease, discounted at the rate inherent In the lease was estmated at £55 Om al the date of inception of the lease
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
for the year ended 31 December 2012

23 Provisicns

Provisions have been made in respect of the following llabilities

Cther lese

COMmmenms

£m

1 January 2011 a8
Utihsation of provision 28
Unwind of discount 04
Change in provision 19
31 December 2011 93
Uuksation of provision (30)
Unwind of discount 06
Changa In provision o7
31 December 2012 76

Lease commitments

In connection with the sale of 5 Churchill Plage in 2010 Canary Wharf Group agieed to pay rents and other costs ncurred on 2 unlet floors for
a penod of 5 years from the date of sale Canary Wharf Group recognised a provision of £3 8m discounted at 6 3% which was deducted from the
profit on disposal of the bulding At 31 December 2012, the provision lotalled £5 5m discounted at 6 2% (31 December 2011 — £7 3m at 6 2%)
with the novement reflecting a combination of changes in potential future letting assumptions, the discount unwind and utilsation

In connection with the sale of certan properties dunng 2005, Canary Wharf Group agreed to provide rental support either in respect
of unexpred rent fiee penods or untl the next rent review date A provision in respect of these commiiments was recognised at the date of disposal
The remaining provision at 31 Dacember 2012 was £2 Om calculated on the basis of a discount rate of 6 2% (31 December 2011 — £2 Om
discounted at 6 2%) This commitment relates to the lease back of certan car parking spaces which will expre in 2028

24 Share capital

lssued share capdal compnses

2012 2011
£m om
Equity shares
- Ordinary Shares 740 765
Shares not classified as ecuity
- Preference Shares 2750 2750
Total 349 0 3515

As at 31 December 2012 a total of 740 404 142 Ordinary Shares compared with 764,913,862 at 31 December 2011 There werg 275,000 000
Preference Shares in1ssue at 31 December 2012 and 31 December 2011

Share Buyback

On 30 August 2012 the Ordinary Shareholders approved a Share Buyback authonsation which prowdas for amaxamum of 5 0% of the 1ssued share
capital of the Company to be purchased The authonty permits the Company {o make on market purchases, at a pnice not less than the nominal
value of 10p per share nor more than the highest of {i) an amount equal to 5 0% above the average market value of an Ordinary Share for the
5 business days immediately preceding the day on which that Ordinary Share 15 contracted 10 be purchased, and {i) the higher of the price of the
last independent trade and the highest current independent id on AIM 10 each case, exclusive of expenses The Share Buyback authonty allows
tha Company to entar into a buyback contract untl the end of the annual general meeting of the Company to be held n 2013 Such a contract may
be executed or completed after the Share Buyback authonsation has ceased 10 have effect

A total of 24 508,820 Ordinary Shares were acquied at an average cost of 122p per share and subsequently cancelled pnor to 31 December 2012
under the terms of the buyback authority representing 3 2% of the Ordinary Shares prior to the buyback The aggregate cost of the Share Buyback,
nGhuding fees was £30 3m

In December 2012 the Board authansed a further £10 Om aggregate spend on the Share Buyback As at 21 March 2013 an addisonal 29 526
Ordinary Shares had been acquired at an aggregate cost of £35,609 mcluding fees




24 Share capital continued

Share Buyback continued
The nghts attaching to each class of shares can be summansed as follows

Ordinary Shares
* one vole per share,

« the Ordinary Shares, together with any other shares ssued by the Company rank behind the Preference Shares in respect of dmdend entitiements,
* 1n the event of a hgqudation the Crdinary Shares rank behind the Preference Shares in respect of any payments to hoiders of the Ordinary Shares, and
* there s no nght of redemption attaching to the Ordnary Shares

Dimgdends on the Ordinary Shares may be paid without the consent of the Preference Shareholders provided that the Lock Through LTV 18 below
75% following payment and all dividends on the Preference Shares have both become payable and been pad up to the most recent dividend
payment date

Preterence Shares

On 30 August 2012 the Ordinary Sharehclders approved the acceptance of amendments o the terms of the Preference Shares In summary,
this agreeinent reached with the Preterence Shareholders improves the overall inancial posiion of the Company The principal amerkiments can
be summarised as follows

» dividends on the Ordinary Shares may be paid without the consent of the holders of the Preference Shares prowded that
-~ the Look Through LTV 1s below 75 0% following payment and
- all dwidends on the Prefarence Shares have both become payatle and been paid up to the most recent diwvidend payment date,

« a change 1o the coupon the Prefeience Shares from a fixed rate of 10 0% pa payable quarcily to 3 month LIBOR plus 7 75% pa
payable cyuarterly

any Preference Shares inissue will be redeemed by 30 August 2017 The Company may delay redemption for & further one or 2 years from the
rademption date in consideration of an annual payment 1o holders of the Preference Shares of an amount equa!l to O 5% of the nominal amount
of the Prefarence Shares held by them In order to delay redemption for 2 years the Company must &lect 1o dalay redemption for one year and
make a subsequent election to delay for a second year,

» ramoving the abiity of the holders of the Preference Shares to require redemption of the Preference Shares such that they are not able
to do so prior to the 1edemption date

» amending the Company s ability to redeem the Preference Shares so that any such redemption may take place only after February 2015, and

» achange to the premum payable on redemption of the Preference Shares prior to the redemption date so that it will be 2 0% of the normnal value
of the Preference Shares If redemptian occurs within 3 years of the adoption date and £ni thereafter

Hedging
Also on 30 August 2012, the Company entered into an interest rate swap which serves 10 fix the 3 month LIBOR element of the Preference Share
coupon at 1 (1% unbl August 2017 Including the margin of 7 759%, the coupon on the Prefeience Shares 1s now fixed at 8 76%

Warrants
On 24 Saptember 2009, the Company entered into a warrant instrurnent pursuant 10 which it agreed 10 1ssue 2 ranches of Warrants 1o the onginal
lenders of the £135 O Shareholder Loan entered into by the Company

The Warrants were exercisable at any trme i the 3 year penod following 18 October 2009 The Wairants expred withowt being exercised in Octobier 2012
25 Dividends

During the year ended 31 December 2012 Preference Dmdends totaling £20 3m ncluding refated swap costs where applicable were paid
and a further £6 Om inclutiing related swap costs was accrued In 2011, Preference Diviclends totalling £38 Omwere pad
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
for the year ended 31 December 2012

26 Share based payments

The Trust holds Ordinary Shares which may be used io satisfy allocations of shares or options granted under any share plan Canary Wharl Group
may adopt The assets of the Trust are held separately from those of Canary Wharf Group

In December 2010 Canary Wharf Group allocated 2,165 000 shares to certain directors and senior employses who may elect to have the sharss
released to them at any time between 30 June 2011 and 31 December 2013 subject o any dealng restnctions When the beneficiary of the
allocation elects to redesrn the shares he or she may choose to sell any or all of therr allocated shares In this event Canary Wharf Group may elect
to pay the equivalent amount in cash with the purpose of releasing those shares back to the Trust

Durng the course of 2011 a fotal of 1 757,500 shares were transferred directly to recipients, sold on the open market or released within the
Trust through the cash equwvalent option, leaving 407,500 shares vested but unexercised at 31 December 2011 A further 1,350 D00 shares
were allocated in 2012 to certain directors and senor employees Of these shares 450 Q00 became available to be released to the beneficiares
of this allocation on 30 June 2012 and the remaining 800,000 shares may be refeased in 2 equal tranches on 30 June 2013 and 30 June 2014

Durng 2012, 32 500 shares which were allocated in 2011 and 375,000 shares which wera allocated in 2012, were released to employees at
a weighted average pnce of £1 13 per shate, of which Canary Wharf Group offeled a cash equivalent for 257 150 shares which weie released back
10 the Trust

The cost to the Group of the 2012 share allocation has been calculated by reference to the market value of Songbuird Shares at the grant date
of £1 11 per share The cost of the allocation atinbutable to 2012, totaling £1 Om has been charged 1o the same expense category as the
employment costs of the ielevant employee, iahen to the Consclidated Income Statement and classfied within administratve expenses

At31 December 2012 the Trust held 12,175,516 Songlyird Shares inclucding 1,350,000 Sengbird Shares which have been allocated 10 employees but
not yet released

27 Notes to the cash flow statement

Reconciiation of profit on ordinary actviies before tax to cash generated from operations

. 2012 2011
£m £m
Profit/(loss) on ordinary actwities before tax 20015 212 8)
Non cash movements
Nat valuation movements on properties {2156 7) 637)
Share of profit after tax of associatcs (3 6) (7 4)
Adjustment for share allocation 10 23
Spreading of tenant incentrves, committed rent increases and lettng fees ' 44 05
Depreciation 01 05
(213 8} (67 8)

(12 3) (280 6)
Changes to working capital and other cash movements

Net financing costs 2399 4815
Utilsation of and other moverments in provisions {24) (1 4)
{Decrease)/increase in recevables {30 4) 233
Increase in payables 457 166
Proceeds from construction contracts 49 114
Caonstruction contract expenditure (5 6} {47)
Cash generated from operations 2398 2561

Income tax refunded/{paid) 26 2 1)

Net cash from operating activities 242 4 254 0




28 Contingent labilities and financial commitments

At 31 Decembher 2012 cenan members of the Group had gven fixed and floating charges over substantially all of their assets as secunty for certain
of the Group's borrowings as referred 10 1 Note 21 In parsiculal, various members of the Group had at 31 December 2012 given fixed tist ranking
charges over cash deposits tetaling £120 8m {31 December 2011 - £116 7m)

As secunty for the issue of up to £2 347 Om of securriised debt (Note 21} Ganary Wharf Gioup has grantedi a first fixed charge over the shares
of CWF I} and a first floatng charge has been gven over all of the assets of CWFII

Commiiments of Canary Wharf Group for future expenditure

. 2012 2011

£m £m
Joint ventures 456 563
Qther construction projects 2447 2757

200 3 3320

Of this commitment for future expenditure £15 7m related io investment properties (31 December 2011 — £47 5m)

The commitments for future expenditure relate to work on development projects whera construction was commitied at 31 Decamber 2012
Any costs accrued or provicled for in the Consolidated Balance Sheet at 31 December 2012 have been excluded

Canary Whart Group has assessed that its funding commitiments in relation to Ciossrail have been satisflied However, there remains a contingent
liability in the event the totat cost of the station exceeds the onginal 1otal anticipated cost of £500 Om

Canary Whart Group has in the narmal course of its business granted mited warranties or indemnities to its tenants in respect of bullding defects
{and defects on the Estate or i the car parks) caused through breach of its obligations as developer contamed in any prelet or other agreernent
Offsetting this potentizl hatbility Canary Wharf Group benefits from warranties from the trade contractors andg supplers who worked on such buildings

Sublet commitments

Under the terms of certan agreements for lease Canary Wharf Group has committed to take back certan space on the basis of short term
sub leases at the end of which the space reverts to the ielevant tenants This space has been secuntised but insofar as the securtisation 1s
concerned, the tenants are contracted to pay rent on the entire amount of space leased whilst taking the covenant of Canary Wharf Group's
subsidiaries on the sublet space The existence of the sublet commitments has been taken into account in arrmang at the market valuation
of the Group s properties at 31 December 2012

The 1able below summarnses these sublets, ncluding the 1ent payable for the next financial year net of any rent recevable

Onginad Rent Ront Torm

sublot Retet Net rent revew TEMEW  COITImence- Expary or
Propert, Leasehoicler sgft sq ft m date basis mert frst break
10 Upper Bank Street Cifford Chance 52,100 52 100 0 a7 N/A OMR  Jul2003  Jul 2013
One Churchill Place Barclays 133400 133400 013 Jul 2014 OMR  Jul 2004  Jul 2019
Ona Churchill Place Barclays 120700 129,700 055 N/A OMR  Jul 2004  Jul 2014
40 Bank Street Skadden 18,500 19 500 ocse N/A OMR  Mar 2003 Mar 2013
40 Bank Street Barclays 38 200 - 168 N/A OMR  Now 2009 Dec 2017
40 Bank Street Barclays 76,400 38 200 264 N/A OMR  Oct 2010 Dec 2017
One Canada Square Meirror Group 26 200 - 100 Jun 2013 OMR May 2008 Jun 2018
One Canada Square KPMG 28 600 28 600 023 N/A OMR  Jun 2010 Dec 2016

Total 504,100 401,500 678
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
for the year ended 31 December 2012

29 Related party transactions

Under the tarms of the Provision of Services Agreement Canary Wharf Group agreed t¢ provide certain business and corporate administration
services for a tme based fee to the Company for an nitaal period of 12 months and to continue thereafter untl terminated by either party on
3 months' notice No such notice has been served to date Dunng 2012, £393,200 plus VAT wag chargsd o the Company for the prowision
of services In 2011 which was paid in Apil 2012 and £431,500 plus VAT has been accrued at 31 Decemhber 2012

Dunng 2012, Canary Wharf Group billed HsO, a company in which It holds an equity Investment equivalent to approximately 13 0% of the issued
share capital £35,703 plus VAT for access to the Estate s ielecommunications infrastructure At 31 December 2012 the outstanding amount was
£4 105 inclusive of VAT

In October 2010 Canary Wharf Group entered into a 50 50 joint venture with Land Secunties to develop 20 Fenchurch Street Simuiltaneousty
Canary Wharf Group entared inlo syncdication arrangements with the Syndication Partners Each of the Syndicaton Partners 1s related 1o a
shareholder in the Company Under these arrangements Canary Whart Group retains a 15 0% econormic interest n the joint venture partnership and
each of the other Syndication Pariners retains an 11 66% interest At 31 December 2012, each of the Syndication Partners had subscnbed £28 8m
and Canary Wharf Group had subscribed £37 1m In 2012 Canary Wharf Group billed £2 279 027 plus VAT for construction and development
management services 1o 20 FSLP In addition, Ganary Wharf Group hilled £9 381,823 plus VAT i1 cosis which were rembuiszble by 20 FSLP
At 31 December 2012 the amount cutstancing was £1,236 240 incluswve of VAT which was receved in January 2013

in July 2011, Canary Wharf Group entered into a 50 50 jaint venture with Qatarn Diar 1o develop the Shell Centre At 31 Dacember 2012 each partner
had subscribed £254m Canary Wharf Group has billed £1 635,446 plus VAT for development management and admrustrative services
Canary Whart Group also billed £98 688 plus VAT for costs which were reimbursable by the joint venture Inaddion a total of £86 250 was accrued
for these serices At 31 December 2012, £293,625 including VAT was outstanding of which £143,625 has been received since the year end

30 Events after the balance sheet date

On 1 March 2013 Canary Wharf Group announced it had acgurred long leasehold interests in 7 Westferry Circus, a 179 800 sq fi building
on the Estate, for a consideration of £46 6m

In December 2012 the Board authonsed a further £10 Om aggregate spend on the Share Buyback As at 21 March 2013 an additional
29,526 Orcinary Shares had been acquired at an aggregate cost of £35 602 incluting fees




Company balance sheet
at 31 December 2012

2012 2011
Note £m £m
Fixed assets
Investments (03] 2,316 3 22040
Current assets
Debtors due in less than one year (d) 83 84
Cash at bank and in hand (@ 103 28
188 112
Creditors amounts falling due within one year {f) (407 3) {400 3)
Net current liabilities (388 7) {388 1)
Total assets less current labiliies 19276 1,814 8
Creditors amounts falling due after more than one year (g (264 6) (270 5)
Net agsets 1,663 0 1544 4
Captal and reserves
Called up share capttal () 740 765
Reserves
- share premium i 1,195 1 1,1951
- profit and loss account (i) 17 54
~ other reserves 0} 3822 267 4
Shareholders’ funds )] 1,663 0 1544 4

Notes (@) to () on the followng pages form an integral pait of these financial statements
Approved by the Board on 21 March 2013 and signed on s behalf by

David Pritchard
Chairman

61

SIS [e1dueUly




62

Notes to the company financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2012

(a) Statement of accounting policies

The prncipal accounting polices are set out below They have all been appled consistently throughout the current and previous years

Basis of preparation
The Company s financial statements are prepared in accordance with applicable UK accounting standards and under the histoncal cost convention

The separate financial statements of the Company are presented as guired by the Act They have heen prepared uncler the histoncal cost convention
and in accordance with applicable Unitad Kingdom law and United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Standards The principal accounting
pokcies are presented below and have been applied consistently throughout the current and pror penods  They have also been prepared on the going
concern bass as described 1 the gong concern stalement i the Drectoss Report contaned n the consolidated inancial stalements

Investments in subsidiary undertakings
Investments in subsidiary undenakings are stated in the Company’s Balance Sheet at cost less any provision for impairment

Interest receivable and interest payable
Interest recewvable and payable are recognised in the period in which they fall due

Accounting for share capnal

As a result of the terms and conditions of the Preference Shares such shares have been classified as debt Consequently they are intizlly stated at
thenr net proceeds with the finance Losts allocated to periods over ther lerm at a constant rate on ther carrying aimount The profit and loss at.Lount
ncludes a charge in respect of the coupon payable calculated by reference to the terms of the Pieference Shares which are dsclosed in Note 24

(b} Profit for the financial year

The profit recorded by the Company in 2012 was £148 8m inclucing the release of an wnpanment provision aganst the investment in SFL of
£112 3m (2011 - loss of £104 7m including imparment provasion increase of £85 9m) Dmvidends totalling £67 Om were receved from SFL in the
year (2011 - £23 Om) The Company carries ts investment in SFL at the estimated recoverable amount  As permitted by Section 408 of the Act
no profit and loss account Is presented for the Company in respect of ether year

{c) Investments

Investments compnse shares held direcily and indirectty in the following subsidianes

Descnption Princypal
Nartig of shares % aCiviies
Songbird Finance Limited” £1 Ordinary 1000  Investment company
Songhird Finance {Two) Limited” €1 Crdinary 1000  Investment cormpany
Songbirg Acguisition Limited 10p Ordinary 1000  Investment company
Canary Wharl Group ple 1p Ordinary B89 4 Holding company

Durectly held
All of these comparies are Incorporated in England and Wales and registered n Great Brtan SFL holds the Group's investment it Canary Whart Group

A complete kst of the subsidary undertakings of Canary Whart Group will be attached to that company's {and s core intermediate holding
subsidianes’) annual returns when they are submitted to the Registrar of Companies

£m £m
Cost and net book value
Cost at 1 January 2012 23612
Prowision for impairment at 1 January 2012 (157 2)
Release of provision in year 1123
(44 9)
Net book value at 31 December 2012 2,316 3

Nat book value at 31 December 2011 2,204 0




{d) Debtors
2012 2011
£m m
Due within one year
Amounts awed by subsidiary undertakings 83 a3
Prepayments and acorued income - 01
83 84

{e) Financial assets

The Cormpany’s financial assets compnse shor 1em cash deposits Cash deposits totalled ©10 3m at 31 December 2012 (31 December 2011 — £2 8m)
comprising deposits placed on deposit at call and term rates

{fi Creditors amounts falling due within one year

2012 20M

£m £m

Amounts cwed 10 subsidiary undertakings 398 2 398 2
Accruals 31 21
Financing ¢osts of non equity share caprtal 60 —

407 3 400 3

The Company had no purchases outstanding at ether 31 December 2012 or 31 December 2011

Financing costs of non equity share capital at 31 December 2012 compnsed the accrued coupon payable under the 1erms of the Preference Shares
and the related interest rate swap payments These amounts were paid in January 2013

The amount owed to subsidiary undertakings s on an interest fiee basis with no defined redemplion date

(g} Creditors amounts falling due after more than one year

Creditors due after more than one year compnse

2012 201
£m £m

Non eguity share capital
Preference Shares 264 6 2705

As a result of the terms and conditions of the Prefersnce Shares such shares have been classified as borrowings  The prefit and loss account incluctes
a charge i respect of the coupon payable calculated by reference to the terms and conditicns, a summary of which 1s disclosed in Note 24

(h) Share capital

At 31 December 2011 a total of 764,913,962 COrdinary Shares were inissue Dunng 2012, a total of 24,509 820 Ordinary Shares were acquired
and cancelled under the terms of the Share Buyback At 31 December 2012 a tolal of 740 404 142 Qrdinary Shares were in 1ssue Details of the
Share Buyback and the nghts attaching to each class of shares as at 31 December 2012 are set out In Note 24

63

SIUSLUAIE}S |BISUBUIY



64

Notes to the company financial statements contirued

for the year ended 31 December 2012

() Reserves
Share Cancsliec Proft and
e o Cexntaf Cther loss
account resenve redernphon resenves acscourt Totai
£m rrt resenve £m £m £m

1 January 2012 1198 1 59 8 — 2079 54 14679
Profit for the year — — — — 1489 148 9
Transfer of movements in imparment — —_ - 1123 {112 3) -
Share Buyback — — 25 — (30 3) {27 8)
31 December 2012 1,195 1 595 25 3202 117 1,582 0

The other reserve arose from an intra group recrganisation undertaken durng 2007 and 18 considered by the directors to be non distributable
The imparment of the Company s investment in SFL (Note (¢)) represents & partial 1ealisation of this amount and accordingly the cumulative
impaitment loss has been ttansfened from the profit and Ioss account 1o the other reserve

{) Reconciliation of movements in sharehofders’ funds

£m
1 January 2012 1544 4
Profit for the year excluding impat ment release 368
Mavement in impairment 1123
Share Buyback adjustment {30 3)
31 December 2012 1,663 0




Independent auditor’s report
for the Company to the members of Songbird Estates plc

We have audited the pare 1t company financial statements of Songbird Estates pic for the year ended 31 December 2012 which compnse the
Company Balance Sheat and the related Notes gy to (i} The financal reporting framework that has been applied intherr preparation 1S applicable law
and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accapled Accounting Practice)

This report 18 made solely to the Company’s members, as a body in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Act Our audit work has been
undertaken so that we might staie to the Company s members those matters we are required to state to thern in an auditors’ report and for no other
purpcse To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Company and the Company 8
members as a body, for our audit work, for this report or for the opinions we have formed

Respective responsibiities of directors and auditor

As explaned more fully in the Direciors Responsibiiies Statement the directors are responsible for the prepaiation of the parent company financial
staterments and o baing satisfied that they gve a tiue and far view Our responsibifity 1s 10 audit and express an opinion on the paient cormpany
financial statements n accordance wih applicable taw and Internatonal Standards on Auditing (UK and Irdland)  Those standards requre us
1o comply with the Auditing Practices Board’s (APB's) Ethical Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtarning evidence aboul the amounts and disclosues in the financial statements sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the
financizl statements are free fiom matenal misstatement, whether caused by fraucl o enror This ncludes an assessment of whether the accounting
policies are appropnate to the Company's crcumstances and have been consistenitly appled and adequately disclosed, the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by the directols and the oveall presentation of the financial statements In aadition we 1ead all the financial
and non financial infermation in the Annual Report to dantify matenal nconsistencies with the audited finaincial statements  If we become aware
of any apparent matenal misstatements or nconsistencies we consider the implcations tor our report

Opinion on financial statements

In our opinion the parent company financial slatements
« gwve a true and far view of the state of the parent company’s affars as at 31 December 2012
* have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice and

» have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Act

Opinicn on other matter prescrnbed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinon

+ the information given in the Directors’ Report fol the financial yeat for which the financial statements ale prepared 1s consistent with the parent
company financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Act requires us to report to you if, In cur opinion

» adequate accounting records have not been kept by the Company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been receved from branches
not visted by us, or

+ the Company financial statements are not I agreement with the accounting records and returns o
» cartain disclosures of diectors' remuneration specified by law are not made or

* we have not receved all the information and exglanations we require for our audit

Other matter

We have reported sepaiately on the Group financial statements of Songbird Estates pic for the vear ended 31 December 2012

Mark Beddy {Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of Deloitte LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Audsor
Londen, UK

21 March 2013
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Shareholders’ information

Shareholder enquiries Adwisers
All enguinies relating te holdings of shares in the Company should be Auditor
addressed to the Company s registrars Deloitte LLP

Capita Registrars
The Registry

34 Beckenham Road
Beckenham

Kent BR3 4TU

Telephone 0871 664 0300°
Facaimile 020 8639 2220

e-mal ssc@captaregstrars com
Websaite www capitaregistrars com

* Currently calls cost 10p per minute plus network extras

GCther enquires

If you waould ke more information about the Company please contact
John Garwood Company Secretary

Registered coffice and registered number

One Canada Square
Canary Wharf
London E14 5AB

Regsstered number 5043352
Website www songhbirdestates com
Telephone 020 7477 1000
Facsimde 020 7477 1001

2 New Strest Square
London EC4A 3BZ

Bankers

The Royal Bank of Scotland Plc
London Corporate SC

PO Box 39952

21/2 Devonshire Square
London EC2M 4XJ

Broker and Nominated Adviser
J P Morgan Secunties pic

25 Bank Street

Canary Wharf

Lendon E14 5JP

Financial PR Consultant
Brunswick Group LLP

16 Lncoln's tnn Fields
London EC2V 7D

Solicitors
Slaughter and May
One Bunhill Row
Lendon EC1Y BYY




Definitions

Defined term Defimtion

20 Fenchurch Street A 890,000 sg ft bulding under construction in the City of Londan

20 FSLP 20 Fenchurch Street Limited Partnership

Act The Companies Act 2006

AIG Amencan International Group Inc

AlM Londen Stock Exchange Alternative Investment Market

Articles Articles of Association of Songbird Estates plc

Ballymore Ballymore Properties Limited

Barclays Barclays plc

Board Board of directors of the Company

bps Basis points

BWB Bntish Waterways Board {now the Canal and Rver Trust)

Canary Wharf/Estate Canary Wharf Estate including Heron Quays West, Park Place, Riverside South and North Quay
Canary Wharf Group Canary Wharf Group plc and 1its subsidianes

CBRE CB Richard Ellis Lmited Surveyors and Valuers

Chairman Chairman of the Board

CIC China Investment Corparation

GIL Community Infrastructure Levy

CLRL Cross London Raill Links Limited

Company Songbird Estates pic

Cushman Cushman & Wakefield, Peal Estate Consultants

CWF I Canary Wharf Finance Il pic

EMA European Medicines Agency

ERV Estmated Rental Value

EU European Union

EZAs Enterpnse Zone Allowances

FVTPL Fau Value Through Profit andi Loss

Glick Shareholders Investment vehicles and Trusts connected with Simon Glick and his farmily
Group The Company, 1ts wholly owned subsidianes and Canary Wharl Group

HsO HighSpeed Office Limted

IAS International Accounting Standards

IAS 17 Intarnational Accounting Standard 17 Leases

IAS 32 International Accounting Standard 32 Financial Instruments  Presentation

1AS 39 International Accounting Standard 338 Financial Instruments  Becogrition and Measurement
1AS 40 International Accounting Standard 40 Investrment Property

ICR Interest Cover Ratio

IFRIC International Financial Reporling Interpretations Committee

IFRIC 15 International Financial Reporting Interpretations Commitiee 15 Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate
IFRS Intermational Financial Reporting Standards

IFRS 3 international Financial Reporting Standard 3 Business Combinations

IFRS 5 International Financial Reporting Standard 5 Non current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Cperations
IFRS 7 International Financial Reporting Standard 7 Financial instruments  Disclosures
IFRS 8 international Financial Reporting Standara 8 Operating Segments

Land Breeze Land Breeze S art

Land Securities Land Secunties Group plc

Lioyds Lloyds Banking Group

LMCTV Loan Minus Cash 1o Value

London Plan

Mayor of London Planning document published by the Greater London Authority
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Definitions continued

Defined term

Defirnition

LTv

m

Midtown
Morgan Stanley
MS

NAV

NIA

NNNAV

Notes

OMR

Open Offer
Ordinary Shares
Preference Shares
Preference Dividend

Prowvision of Services Agreement

pst

Qatar Holding
Savills

SDLT

Section 106

SFL

Share Buyback
Shareholder Loan
Shell

Shell Centre
Sigmificant Shareholders
Skadden
Songbird Shares
sq ft

Syndication Partners
T™MT

Treasury Shares
Trust

UK

UK GAAP

VAT

Warrants

Wood Wharf

Loan to Value

Mitlion

Area of Central London between the City and the West End

Morgan Stanley & Co Limited including all related funds entities and associates

Morgan Stanley Real Estate Fund IV International GP LLC and Morgan Stanley European Real Estate
Special Situations Il Offshore Inc

Net Agset Value

Net Internal Area

Trple Net Asset Value

Notes of Canary Wharf Group’s securitisalion

Cpen Market Rent

An open cifer for the 1ssue of new 108 375,000 Crdinary Shares completed i Cctober 2010
Ordinary shares of 10p each

Preference shares of £1 00 each

Fixed cumutative dvidend of 2 5% per guarter of aggregate amount of nominal value and any share
premium paid up on Preference Shares

A provision of services agreernent between the Company and Canary Wharf Group
Per square foot

Qatar Holding, LLC

Savlls Commercial Limited Chartered Surveyors
Stamp Duty Land Tax

Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990
Songbird Finance Limited

The repurchase for cancellation of Scngbird Shares

]

££135 Om loan facility entered into by SFL and certan significant shareholders in 2009 and repaid in 2010

Shell International Lumited

A5 25 acre site on the South Bank London

Glick Shareholders, Land Breeze, MS Shareholders and Qatar Holding
Skadden Arps Slate Meagher & Flom |LLP

Ordinary Shares of the Company

Square foot/square feet

Enties relating to Canary Wharf Group, Changadong Investrnent Corporation, Morgan Stanlay and Qatar Holding

Technology Media Teleccmmunications

Shares acquired by any Group enhty and not cancelled
Canary Wharf Employees’ Share Ownership Plan Trust
United Kingdom of Great Bntan and Northern freland
United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice
Value Added Tax

Warrants over Ordinary Shares

A site adjacent 1o the Estate




Our history

2013

2010

On 4 January 2013, the Board announced
that 1t had approved a further £100m n
aggregate to repurchase its own shares
(subject to certan conditions) of which
£35,609 has been utiised

2012

On 12 October 2012, the Board announced
that following receipt of a dmdend from
Canary Wharf Group, ¢ would stant a
non-discretionary buyback programme wath
its broker, JP Morgan Cazenove, to
purchase on the Company's behalf and
withn certan pre set parameters, its
Ordinary Shares up to an aggregate cost of
£300m The Buyback Programme mnitially
ran from 12 October 2012 and ended on
26 October 2012 In that time, the Company
repurchased and cancelled 4,803,677
Ordinary Shares A second phase of the buyback
programme ran from 1 November 2012 io
27 November 20312 during which time a
further 19706,143 Ordnary Shares were
repurchased The programme was extended on
4 January 2613 and concluded on 4 Aprl 2013

On 31 August 2012, the Company amended
the terms of its Preterence Shares in order to
reduce the short term finance nsk thereby
secunng long term stable financing until at
least 2017 The amendments allow (subject to
certain conditions), the payment of dividends
on the Ordinary Shares without the consent of
preference shareholders and gives more
control over the trming of the redemption by
removing the preference shareholders’ early
redemption option The changes also lower
the coupon payable on the Preference Shares
fram a fixed rate of 10 0% p a {with potential
increases to 13 0% in 2014 and 150% in
2015), to 3 month LIBOR plus 775% pa
(hedged at an alf in rate of 8 76%)

201

On 22 July 2011, the Company completed
an agreement to acquire a further 741,387
ordinary shares in Canary Whart Group
which has increased the interest of the
Company in the issued share captal of
Canary Wharf Group to 69 37%

0On 23 September 2010, a £140 Om Open
Offer was announced by the Company The
Open Offer resulted i the issue of
109,375,000 Ordinary Shares which were
Isted on AlM The proceeds of the Open
Offer were used to repurchase the £135 Om
faciity which compnsed part of the
Company’s £103 bhilion captal rasing
and share capital reorgamisation which
concluded in October 2009

2009

The 2009 capital raistng resulted In a more
streamiined financial and corporate structure
for the Company The 1ssued ordinary share
capital of the Company was changed to
comprise one class of ordinary shares of
10 pence each, carrying one vote per share,
which are all isted on AIM Following the
2009 Capital Raising, the majority
shareholders of the Company comprise
Qatar Holding, Giick Shareholders, Fullbloom
Investmenti Corporation (@ wholly owned
subsidiary of CIC} and Morgan Stanley

In addition, there 15 £2750m of £100
non convertible/non  votng preference
shares mn issue which are held by 2 of the
majority shareholders

Cn 20 October 2009, the Company
completed an agreement to acquire a further
54,007,620 ordinary shares in Canary Wharf
Group which increased the interest of the
Company in the issued share capital
of Canary Wharf Group to 69 25%

2007

In February 2007, the Company completed a
share capital restructuring removing all past
and future D share dwvidend labilities
In consideration for the issue of 14,478,260
B shares to Batish tand (Jont Ventures)
Limited, the D shareholder

2004

The offer for Canary Wharf Group was declared
wholly unconditional on 21 May 2004 and
closed on 15 July 2004 at which time the
Company, together with Songbird Acquisition
Limited, held 66 32% of the i1ssued share
capital of Canary Wharf Group The Company
was subsequently admitted onto AtM

Top to botlom London Docklands in 1987 facing
west Canary Wharfin 2012 CGlimage of Crossrail
the 115,000 sq # retail and leisure space over
the new Crossral station that s currently
under developmeni




www.songbirdestates.com
One Canada Square

Canary Wharf

London E14 5AB




